






March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 21

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
5:30 P.M., P.S.T., TUESDAY, MARCH 5, 2019
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

Jeff Dalling, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to order at
5:38 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Evi Buell
Gratton Miller
Jeff Dalling
Stefan Beck
Tera Hooiman

Excused: Ian Montgomery
John Anderson.

City Staff Present: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Ty Trouten, Police Department Captain
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
John Holmes, Fire Marshal
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

February 5, 2019 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve the minutes from the February 5, 2019 Planning Commission
Meeting.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed. (4-0, Gratton Miller abstained)



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 21

I. NEW BUSINESS

A. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 2-19,
filed by The Stage Door Elko, LLC, which would allow a bar within a C (General
Commercial) Zoning District located within the Central Business District, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the southwest side of 3rd Street,
approximately 75’ northwest of Railroad Street (303 3rd Street, Suite A).

Emily Anderson, 149 Elm Street, gave some background information. She introduced her
business partner Greg, who sits with her on a non-profit that she Chairs called Ghost Light
Productions, which is a theater company in town. She has an extensive background in the arts.
She has worked in professional theater all over the State. She moved to Elko and started Ghost
Light Productions, which is a non-profit theater company. They do a lot of shows and fundraisers
for local non-profits. She is currently working with the Nevada Arts Council to bring a program
to Elko that will bring urban artists to town and rural artists across the state. She just left the
Chamber of Commerce after for years, so she knows a lot about small businesses, how the
community works, and what it is lacking, which is the arts. Her background is in educational arts
with children, teens, and adults. She has wanted to open a performance venue for a long time.
Part of her mission was to bring rural arts exposure, education, and programing workshops to
Elko. They found a location that they would like to have their venue in. It is going to be a studio
theater. They would like to have a bar to serve alcohol during shows and events, along with food.
They are in process of getting their restaurant license. The idea is that they want to host shows,
so artists will have an affordable venue. The venues to do shows in Elko can be outstanding in
Price to local non-profits. They want to make that space available for artists, actors, people who
want to do art shows, jewelry shows, and bringing more entertainment shows and life to
downtown. There are a lot of opportunities out there, but they are lacking an affordable venue.
She passed out a sheet with some ideas on what they want to do. They need to have some sort of
sustainable income, aside from their big nights, so they also want to do some smaller events.
Bottom line they are about bringing arts and arts exposure to the area.

Ty Trouten, Captain Elko Police Department, thought this was a very unique and novel idea and
would be a very welcome addition to the community. The Police Department had a couple of
concerns and asked for some special conditions upon the permit, if the bar is allowed. He
understood that they wanted to bring in some children’s events. He pointed out that it was a tight
area and it had no natural, physical, barriers built in that separate the bar area from the theater, or
the tables. One of the conditions he was asking for was if there was a children’s event going on,
and if there were going to be children present, that the bar be closed at that time. They can’t have
the minors in there, because it becomes very difficult to ensure that the children aren’t accessing
alcohol, or being provided alcohol from others in there. The other thing that came up in
discussion of this was that there be restrictions against any temporary sexually oriented business,
or special event, licenses for this premise. It was Mr. Trouten’s understanding that the property
had an easement along the Commercial Street frontage for parking. He asked that it be in



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 21

compliance with Elko City Code 3-2-17 for additional lighting. He mentioned that lighting
tended to diminish criminal activity, which protects the clients and customers.

Chairman Jeff Dalling asked if it was paved. (No)

Mr. Trouten said his last question concerned the limitation on hours. He wasn’t sure what the
applicants plans were. Is this going to be a bar that is open all hours, day and night?

Nitin Bhakta, 294 Idaho Street, said he was representing the Midtown Motel, which is located
next to the subject property. They have several concerns regarding the bar going in. With this
building in close proximity to the motel, he thought noise was going to be a big factor. They
were concerned about the noise. Because there is only 5 feet of separation between the proposed
bar building and the guest rooms. He has a lot of miners and guest that stay at the motel that
work on swing shifts and they are in bed by 7 or 8 o’clock. Both are old buildings with thin
walls. They have been in the motel for 37 years. They have seen a lot of events happen in and
around town. They’ve seen a lot of people park in their parking lot to travel to other places. They
like to have that space available for their guests. The other concern he has, with alcohol people
will possibly be loitering outside the building. Noise tends to migrate. Those are some of the
issues they have.

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated February 21, 2019.
Staff recommended approval with the conditions and the findings listed in the staff report. Staff
asked that the Planning Commission add to Condition No. 1 what the permitted use will be.

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, recommended approval.

John Holmes, Fire Marshal, had two condition. The applicant is responsible for obtaining any
and all associated building and fire related construction annual operational permits required to
gain approval for the proposed use. Also, to keep in conformance with occupancy number as
associated with the business, and an occupancy load sign will be required.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, said they had heard some public comment with regard
to noise, parking, and loitering. It looked like the applicant was proposing to lease half the
building. If you look at the floor plan, half of that space would be a bar area. He thought the
biggest issue with regard to that would be on half of that lease area on the 3rd Street side. That is
something the Planning Commission could keep in mind as they consider the public comment in
regards to noise. With regard to parking the corridor is there. Under Code the corridor is utilized
for parking in the downtown area for all types of businesses within 400 feet. The corridor is
probably going to be more convenient parking, than going around to Idaho Street. He saw that as

less of a concern, although it could happen. There is some concern about loitering outside
the building and how that might impact the occupants of the hotel. Mr. Wilkinson didn’t have a
response to that. That is something that may, or may not, occur. If they are on the front side of
the building, in the vacant area, you would have a buffer of the whole building between them and
the hotel. Personally, he wasn’t convinced that this is a good location for a bar. He
recommended, if approved, that Condition No. 1 would be a conditional approval for a bar
associated with cabaret performances, performances by art groups, non-profit artists, artist
displays, and/or art workshops, or closely related activities. Mr. Wilkinson thought that give



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 21

quite a bit of room. He would go further and say that the CUP for the bar shall not be valid if the
bar is not associated with the listed activities. Rather than have a CUP issued to an individual
business, he thought if they considered, in this case, being that specific it would be worth the
while. Typically, he didn’t like to see CUP with that much specificity in them, but he thought it
was appropriate in this case for the Commission to consider that.

Ms. Laughlin pointed out that in the Staff Report there were the four conditions from the Police
Department and the last two conditions that the Fire Department started are not in the Staff
Report.

Commissioner Stefan Beck said Captain Trouten had some good points. He thought they should
try and do everything they could to minimize the responsibility of the Police Department. He
also thought the motel owner had good concerns. Commissioner Beck said he hoped this would
work.

Commissioner Gratton Miller asked if the applicant already was operating out of the building.

Ms. Anderson explained that one of their friends associated with Ghost Light is trying to get a
Comedy Night going, so he is touring at other venues.

Chairman Dalling asked what the square footage was of the half of the building that she is
leasing.

Ms. Anderson said it was around 2,100 square feet.

Chairman Dalling asked if half of that square footage would be bar.

Ms. Anderson explained that half would be the lobby, but the bar would be located in there as
well.

Commissioner Tera Hooiman asked if the front area was a gallery area, where there would be
food service and where the bar would be located.

Ms. Anderson explained that the front area, with the table and chairs, would be where people
would sit for cabaret nights, art nights, or whatever they had going on. That space would be
movable, if they wanted to move chairs out of the way for different events. The bar would be in
that area and next to it is the stage. There is also a dressing/green room, a small kitchen, and
bathrooms.

Chairman Dalling asked if they were having to build the bathrooms and the other walls.

Ms. Anderson explained that the walls were already up and the bathrooms were existing.

Chairman Dalling asked if the bathrooms were ADA. (Yes) He asked if they couldn’t use the Art
Club Building.

Ms. Anderson said it was small. This had been a dream of hers, to start her own venue where
there could be a variety of shows.



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 21

Chairman Dalling said he was worried about how they were going to make money if they were
doing all the events for charity.

Ms. Anderson said there were different things depending on the nonprofit and whatever proposal
letters they sent, either the rehearsal space or the show space would be for free. If it’s a larger
non-profit they could work out a deal where it is a portion of ticket sales. They will also get food
and beverage sales. They will do different things like raffles, but most of the revenue would
come in from the bar area, which is why they are trying to get their CUP.

Chairman Dalling asked if it would be a normal full bar. (Yes) He asked if there was
performance and they teamed up with the College, how it would work if they had performers that
were under age.

Ms. Anderson said it would depend on what kind of stipulations were put into the CUP. They
have done a lot of show with Ghost Light at the museum and they get their special event liquor
license, and serve and check IDs. She has a show that they want to open with. She’s mentoring a
17 year old in directing. It would depend on what kind of conditions were put on them.

Mr. Wilkinson pointed out that the City doesn’t allow the performers in other bars to be under
age. This isn’t a bar bar. It is a request in association with all of the cabaret and theater and all of
that, so it is a little different. That’s why he thought the CUP needed some specific conditions
with it on what is being approved. He thought if they were going to have alcohol that they don’t
allow performers to be under age. We have had those issues in other establishments.

Ms. Anderson said they were getting their restaurant license.

Mr. Trouten said one of the concerns was the nature of the business. A restaurant that also serves
alcohol is a different type of business than a bar that may also serve food. There are some
businesses that are a hybrid, with a bar on one side and a restaurant on one side, but there is a
physical barrier to separate the two, so that those who aren’t drinking i.e. minors, juveniles can
be on one side while adults can enjoy alcoholic beverages on the other side. This is a tight space,
so it does presents some concerns. They’ve had requests come in from other bars to have a band
with a juvenile member, which have been denied. How do you control that without having eyes
on the whole time? That is not the job of law enforcement or anyone else. That is the reason for
the condition that if there are minors and juveniles that the bar be closed during that time.

Chairman Dalling asked if the applicant was ok with that.

Ms. Anderson said she understood where Captain Trouten was coming from.

Chairman Dalling said he would still classify this as a bar. They would gave food, but He
wouldn’t call them a restaurant. He then asked about what she had planned for hours of
operation.

Ms. Anderson said as of right now Wednesday through Saturday they would be open from 4pm
to 2am. She said the closing time would depend, comedy nights start pretty late. She said they



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 21

were definitely not looking to be a rager bar. They want to do art and be able to bring people and
create some more nightlife and culture downtown.

Chairman Dalling asked how the applicant felt about the condition about excluding sexually
oriented events, such as exotic dancers.

Ms. Anderson said she was fine with that.

Mr. Dalling said the parking should be fine because they were within 400 feet of the corridor.
Mr. Dalling said he was trying figure out a way to clean up some of the empty dirt lots in town.
He asked if this was different because it was on Railroad property.

Mr. Wilkinson said it was a different lease area.

Chairman Dalling asked if that meant it was a free for all.

Mr. Wilkinson explained that it wasn’t leased to the proposed tenants of this building, or the
lease holder of that building. He didn’t think they would have any rights or authority to do any
improvements to that area without the Railroad allowing for them to do that, and then they would
probably be forced to lease that area from the Railroad. That dirt area is a delineated area for the
railroad to lease at some point in time. The City took a look at improving that as a parking lot,
and it would be several hundred thousand dollars.

Commissioner Miller asked if they had to go through any type of leasing permits to get approval
from the Railroad to park in there, or if it was through Dennis Parkers lease.

Mr. Wilkinson said that Dennis Parker could sublease the premise as he sees fit.

Ms. Anderson said they were going to try to get more gravel to fill in some of the holes and
smooth it out. She hoped most people would park in the corridor.

Chairman Dalling said Captain Trouten was hoping they would do some lighting on the Post
Office side. He asked if Ms. Anderson was ok with that.

Ms. Anderson said she was.

Chairman Dalling asked if she was ok with Mr. Wilkinson’s condition on make the CUP specific
to art events.

Ms. Anderson said yes.

Mr. Wilkinson said his concern was that Conditional Use Permits run with the land. If we do a
Condition Use Permit for a bar and the performing art aspect goes away, the applicants could
transfer the CUP to someone else for just a bar. He wasn’t sure that was a good location for that
type of use. He thought a CUP that tied it to art type activities would be worth considering.

Chairman Dalling thought Ms. Anderson was in the right realm, and wished her good luck.



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 21

Commissioner Beck thought it was great what she was trying to do.

Chairman Dalling said he understood Mr. Bhakta’s concerns, but he thought it helped that the
applicant was only renting the front half of the building. He thought that people should respect
the parking and park in the corridor. It sounded like the applicant was willing to add the lighting
on the one side and close the bar when children are present.

Commissioner Evi Buell said the only question was on the hours of operation.

Chairman Dalling said he got 4pm to 2am.

Commissioner Buell asked if everyone was comfortable with that.

Commissioner Beck said yes.

Commissioner Hooiman thought that with the CUP the alcohol specific stuff should be specific
to the event. If it’s not specific to the event and there are juveniles there it would be an issue.

Chairman Dalling said they would have to close the bar if there are any minors.

Commissioner Hooiman asked how they would regulate that.

There was discussion about having 21 and older events and advertising them as such.

Commissioner Hooiman said she would support that if that’s how it was going to be. If there is
any chance that the bar is going to be open, she didn’t want there to be a grey area. There are
plenty of other locations to get alcohol.

Commissioner Buell asked if they needed to codify in as an additional condition the hours of
operation.

Ms. Laughlin said it was Police Condition No. 4.

Commission Buell said they would need to clarify what that condition is.

Commissioner Hooiman asked if there was something with regards to the noise ordinance that
would satisfy what the Bhakta’s were concerned with.

Ms. Laughlin said there was nothing in the conditions.

Commissioner Hooiman asked if that was something they needed to worry about.

Chairman Dalling said all the bars downtown were supposed to have a window that the PD could
see through. A lot of the bars cover them up with heavy tint or signs. That was a concern. They
need to make sure that they have to have a window that the PD could see through

Mr. Wilkinson asked if that was in the Liquor Code already.



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 21

Ms. Laughlin said the Liquor Code states that there has to be visibility.

Mr. Wilkinson said it was already a Code requirement.

Chairman Dalling said he wanted to reiterate it, because a lot of things are in Code and no one
monitors that. He thought it was best to just put it in the conditions.

***Motion: Conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit No. 2-19 subject to the
conditions in the City of Elko Staff Report dated February 21, 2019, with modifications
listed as follows:

1. The permit is granted to the applicant The Stage Door Elko, LLC for a bar
associated with cabaret performances, performances by art groups, non-profits,
artist, art displays, and/or art workshops and closely related activities. The CUP for
the bar shall not be valid if the bar is not associated with the listed activities.

2. The conditional use permit shall automatically lapse and be of no effect one year
from the issuance unless the permit holder is actively engaged in developing the
specific property to the use for which the permit was issued.

3. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use
and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning
Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying
that all zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the
permit have been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be
transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special
conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with other provisions of the
zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

4. CUP 2-19 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after the
commencement of the expansion to the current facility.

5. Signage will require a separate application with the Building Department and be
subject to Elko City Code 3-9 as well as Redevelopment Agency approval.

6. Applicant to maintain an account with Elko Sanitation at all times for collection of
garbage, refuse, or waste. Receptacles shall be of adequate capacity and be provided
in sufficient number to hold all garbage, refuse or waste that accumulates between
collections.

7. Exterior of the building to be properly lit with lighting that is shielded from the
adjacent motel windows.

Building Department:
1. Building permits are required for all work proposed for access.

City Clerk:
1. A business license is required prior to opening for business.
2. A liquor license is required prior to serving liquor.



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 21

Fire Department:
1. The applicant is responsible for obtaining any and all associated building and fire

related construction and/or operational permits required to gain approval for the
proposed use.

2. Abide by occupancy regulations.
3. Post the building occupancy.

Police Department:
1. Bar to be closed during any children’s events.
2. No conditional use for special event sexually oriented business.
3. Lighting to be installed to illuminate the parking area within the lease agreement.
4. Limit hours of operation as deemed appropriate by Planning Commission.

Planning Commission:
1. Window and storefront regulations by the Liquor License are to be observed at all

times.
2. Hours of operation shall be 4:00 p.m. to 2:00 a.m.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were the conditional use is in
conformance with the Objectives in the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The
conditional use is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan
and existing transportation infrastructure. The conditional use is in conformance with the
Wellhead Protection Plan. Approval of the Conditional Use Permit is required for the
proposed use to be in conformance with Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, and 3-2-18 of the Elko
City Code. The proposed use conforms to Section 3-8 of Elko City Code.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

Mr. Wilkinson notified the applicant and audience that there were 10 days to file an appeal if
they weren’t satisfied with the outcome.

2. Review, consideration, and possible action of Conditional Use Permit No. 3-19, filed
by Elite Storage and RV, LLC, which would allow for a storage facility and
recreational vehicle storage within a C (General Commercial) Zoning District and
abutting a R (Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the northeast corner of the intersection
of Opal Drive and S 12th Street (1500 Opal Drive – APN 001-630-056).

Commissioner Miller disclosed that he works for Farr West Engineering, which did survey work
on the property.

David Mitton, 45 Teton Drive, Lindon, Utah, said he was the owner of Elite Storage and RV,
LLC. They are well underway on the project. The project is considered a Class A storage unit



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 21

facility. Class A requires a certain mix. They have RV storage, climate controlled units, and
standard units. He explained that the northern portion of the property was 3 acres and they intend
to use it as outdoor RV storage. This difference between this facility and other storage facilities
is that there are gates that are controlled electronically by an app, which will be able to be
accessed by the tenants. The property will be locked down after 10pm. As is relates to the
neighbors around the facility, storage is the lowest impact project allowed in the Commercial
Zone. The temperature controlled units and the RV area are almost full and they don’t even have
a sign on the property. Elko just doesn’t have any temperature controlled units. They would like
to ask the Commission to approve two more buildings. They will have the same look, color, and
feel of the buildings they are building now. When their current buildings are about 60% they
would like to begin construction on additional climate controlled, or insulated, units. The other
thing was when they initially submitted the CUP they intended to construct an 8 foot screen wall
around the entire property. They were able to construct half of it as a screen wall. There is a
section that is rather problematic for an 8 foot wall. When they submitted for the original CUP,
they requested approval for a screen wall or a screen fence. They would like to clarify for the
Planning Commission that they would like the north and east sides to be a screen fence. They
submitted copies of what that would look like. It is the highest quality screen fence you can get.
The 8 foot screen wall is part of the CUP, not just for security. They will have a clientele that
will have expensive equipment. The 8 foot screen fence and the 8 foot screen wall is a security
issue for them. If they lower the wall, or the fence, they would compromise the integrity and
safety of the property. They were asking for the Commission to allow the 8 foot screen fence. If
they were to lower the fence in any place that would become the point of easiest access. When
they understood that the neighbors were concerned about the size of the fence, they asked their
engineer and the fence company to remove the four rows of barbed wire on top of it, so it doesn’t
look so prison like. They were hoping that compromise would help soften the neighbors’
objections to the fence. They were just asking the Commission to let them keep moving forward
and have this available.

Commissioner Hooiman asked if the first application was for a 6 foot slatted fence.

Mr. Mitton said in the application it stated an 8 foot screen wall or screen fence, but when they
did the illustration it all showed the screen wall. Now they are asking for a portion of the
boundary to be a screen fence.

Commissioner Hooiman asked if they were going to put barbed wire on top of it.

Mr. Mitton explained that they have removed all of that. He thought it would be a nicer product
for the neighbors. The other thing was on their Conditional Use Permit they are required to
screen the area lighting from the neighbors. That is another reason the neighbors would want
them to have an 8 foot fence, because the site will be lit at night. He wanted the Planning
Commission to understand that this was all driven by security and a quality product.

Ron Chappell, 1735 Flagstone Drive, said he was one of the neighbors that Mr. Mitton was
trying to wall in. When he looks out of his back door all he can see is giant poles. When they put
the fence in all he will be able to see from his sliding glass door is a wall. He bought his house a
year ago and he knew that they were going to build the storage units, but he didn’t know that
they were going to build a prison wall around it. He said that the applicant said this was for
security. He asked whose security they were trying to get, the applicant’s or his. The fence



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 11 of 21

company said they were going to build this fence, and that they were going to tear his fence
down to put it up. They want to come in and take part of the fence down, so they can construct
their fence, this wall. He was thinking that they should try to work together. If they couldn’t
lower the fence, maybe they could pull some of the slats down, so they wouldn’t be so high and
so they wouldn’t be looking at a wall. He heard what they were saying and what they have to do.
You also have to try to think about the people who invested all that money when they bought
those homes.

Mr. Mitton said part of this might be a communication problem. Before they submitted for the
CUP, Mr. Capps was in process of subdividing those properties. Mr. Mitton talked to Mr. Capps
at length about the fence. Mr. Capps would have liked Mr. Mitton’s fence to go in first, but he
put a fence up first right on the property line. When the fences are built they start with 10 foot
poles. As they set the foundations for the poles the grade moves up and down. Once the poles are
in they will pull a string line and cut the tops of the poles off to 8 feet. Right now the poles are
about 9 ½ feet tall. They won’t be any higher than 8 feet once the fence is complete. Mr. Mitton
could see where the concern was.

Mr. Chappell said what they did was they kept packing dirt until the dirt was level with his
property. Once they got it wide enough then they put in the poles for the fence. He said it was
more than 8 feet tall from the applicants side of the fence.

Chairman Dalling call for a Break, which started at 6:51 p.m.

The Break ended at 6:54 p.m.

Ms. Laughlin, went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated February 25, 2019. Staff
recommended approval with the findings and conditions in the staff report, with a modification
to Condition No. 1 allowing for the storage of RV units, either indoor or outdoor.

Mr. Thibault recommended approval.

Mr. Holmes said with listening to the applicant he wanted to add a condition that the applicant
follow the 2012 IFC D103.5, which states that the electric gate shall be equipped with the means
of opening the gate by the Fire Department personnel for emergency access. Otherwise, he
recommended approval.

Mr. Wilkinson recommended approval as presented by staff and clarify that it would include RV
storage, either indoor or outdoor.

Commissioner Beck asked the applicant if the height of the fence could be modified to the point
where all parties would be satisfied.

Chairman Dalling said it sounded like part of Mr. Chappell’s concern was the height of the poles.

Mr. Mitton said they were more concerned, not about putting wall around his house, but the
integrity of the project, and the security of project. It is the dollar volume of property that they
will have on the property. If they were to lower the fence to 6 feet then it would become the
easiest point of access and people could potentially go right through the neighbors’ yards. They



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 12 of 21

have taken the four rows of barbed wire off the top. They were approved for an 8 foot screen
fence, or wall, and they need it to be 8 feet.

Chairman Dalling said they were approved for an 8 foot screen wall, so the Commission would
keep it as a wall and they would be happy.

Mr. Wilkinson said if you look at the exhibits included in the last application it stated an 8 to 9
1/2 foot tall wall, depending on what they needed to do there. That was approved by the Planning
Commission. Typically, when we look at screening a property, in particular residential use, we
end up at 8 foot. It is a happy medium for everybody. At the last meeting the neighbors wanted it
to be 14 feet tall. It just depends, but 8 foot is what we typically see on almost all applications
where we consider screen walls as a requirement for the use.

Commissioner Beck said he understood what Mr. Mitton said. His only other question was if the
original agreement on the interference of the wall with the homeowners in any way compromised
by later decisions to add a bunch of dirt so the wall would be higher, which would interfere with
the view of the mountains. Commissioner Beck said he understood the importance of the wall.

Mr. Mitton explained that one of the main reasons they were in front of the Commission today
was the area adjacent to the condos was compromised. When they built the condos they pushed
all the dirt out to the crest. The entire embankment is fill dirt. When Mr. Capps cut his property
he pushed all the dirt south and raised the natural grade. The difference between wall and fence
is astronomical. The wall weighs 4,500 pounds per panel. The panels can’t be supported with fill
dirt. They need to build a fence that is consistent with the same size and same scope. Because of
the fill dirt it would be impossible. The other thing they had a problem with was there is natural
drainage that comes off of property, and if they build a concrete wall it would become a dam.

Lana Carter, Carter Engineering, PO Box 794, explained that all they can do with the neighbors
is match the existing grade. They haven’t built up their property higher than what is there, they
are matching the existing grade. The drainages coming off the existing condo property are really
hard to isolate where they are. They know they are coming onto the property and they are
mitigating that through there, because it is an existing condition they have no control over and it
was done years ago when the condos were built. There are a few different types of drains and
some new work that has gone on from the condos and they are just mitigating the drainage onto
Mr. Mitton’s property in a concentrated flow. They don’t really have a choice, that’s just the way
it’s going. If we build the wall it creates a physical barrier to hold the drainage it. With the chain-
link they could mitigate the drainage through.

Chairman Dalling asked if it was correct that the condo property was not allowed to drain on to
Mr. Mitton’s property.

Ms. Carter said she wouldn’t know what they could do about it at this point in time.

Chairman Dalling said if they did build a wall and it dammed up, wouldn’t it be the condos
problem.

Ms. Carter said they could consider it that way, but there is a lot of water coming off of there and
they have had to deal with it. Along that whole property line they have had to deal with it. Every



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 13 of 21

time it rains there is a bunch of water that comes off of that property onto Mr. Mitton’s. They
have ways of mitigating it because they have a valley gutter and will eventually have a drainage.
They are going to take it over to Opal Drive and put it in the storm drain there. They have no
choice but to mitigate it, or they can dam it up, but Ms. Carter didn’t think that was a good idea.

Chairman Dalling asked why this wasn’t a concern when they submitted the application for the
first CUP.

Ms. Carter explained that it would be more practical to put a fence along the condo boundary
because of the drainage, and along Great Basin Estates because they had to build it next to a
fence that is already in. They can get a fence a little bit closer. They won’t be taking down the
neighbors’ fences. There was some sort of talk between the fence contractor that they would be
able to get it even closer to the existing fence if they took out the slats, but they are not going to
touch the neighbors’ fences. They will have to offset the fence a little. In the original application
they put on the application a screen wall or a screen fence. The plan, as they were moving
forward, was to do the wall all the way around, but as they got further into the project they
realized that it would be more practical to put the fence in. They haven’t changed the grading
next to Mr. Capp’s property. They had to build a platform at the top to put the fence on, but they
didn’t build it up higher than what it was.

Mr. Wilkinson said he had a couple comments. Mr. Capps had to build up the lot, so that the lots
drained to the street. There was some fill put in there to raise those lots. Some areas had quite a
bit of fill to address the FEMA flood issues. He commented that there was one property owner
present, voicing concerns, out of multiple property owners that would have received notices
along the property. He thought on the grading plan that there was quite a bit of topo difference
between this property and the condo side, and this property and the residential side to begin with.
That supports the fact that they haven’t gone over there and built it up. Fundamentally, whether
they were talking about a wall or a fence, he thought the concern expressed by the public was
that they were looking out the backyard and seeing a difference in their fence height and
neighbor’s fence height of two feet. That is the objection by one property owner. Mr. Wilkinson
thought whether it was a wall or a screen fence the issue was the two foot difference in fence
height. The objective of screening is so that people from outside don’t look in.

Mr. Mitton said his only comment was that they have tried to meet the Code, and they have
worked with Scott and Cathy through the whole process. They aren’t asking to do anything
different than any other storage unit in town.

Ms. Laughlin read the definition of screen wall from the Code: A masonry wall or opaque fence
so constructed as to prevent the view of enclosed activities or uses from without.

Chairman Dalling said it sounded like they were deliberating the height of the wall. He thought
taking off barbed wire was a good compromise. He thought they would keep the 8 feet. It was
originally a screen wall. Mr. Dalling felt that it was already approved as a screen wall, all they
were doing was adding a little bit to it. He was feeling that they keep the screen wall, because
that’s what it was approved for.

Commissioner Buell said by definition the fence is a screen wall.



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 14 of 21

Mr. Wilkinson explained that the Planning Commission needed to be specific in that they would
accept the proposed fence type that has been proposed under the application to meet the
requirements for the screen wall.

Chairman Dalling said it’s a CUP and they were approved with the CUP for a masonry wall. He
liked the 8 feet and he would like to keep it like it was.

Commissioner Buell didn’t think it specified masonry wall, it just said screen wall.

Mr. Wilkinson explained that there was some testimony provided that they intended to do a
screen wall. Their site plan that was approved showed a screen wall, and the application talked
about it being a masonry wall or fencing. We just approved a slatted chain-link fence on another
storage project for outdoor RV storage as meeting the requirements for a screen wall.

Chairman Dalling said if they were already approved one way, why go back.

Commissioner Beck agreed that they had already approved the screen wall.

Commissioner Buell thought they were getting a little lost in the definition of a screen wall. For
their purposes here it is a masonry wall or a screen fence that they both meet the requirement.

Ms. Laughlin pointed out in the previous Conditional Use Permit Application on Question No. 3
said that it would be secured by a block wall or screen fence. If you look at the plan that was
submitted stated a screen wall. A screen wall, based on the definition in code, could be a block
wall or a screen fence. The details that were provided were for a masonry wall.

Chairman Dalling asked if the conditions stated that it had to be a masonry wall.

Ms. Laughlin stated that the conditions stated as presented on the plan.

Mr. Wilkinson said there was testimony during the original meeting that there was going to be a
masonry wall. The applicant is coming back, asking for a new CUP, so that the outdoor RV
storage area may, or may not, at some point be converted to either climate control or other types
of covered storage, and in that process the applicant is asking for the areas shown on the site plan
today as screen fencing to be approved based on the information and the details presented that it
would be a manufactured, slatted, chain-link fence that is 8 feet tall. That is what is being asked
for today that clarifies that issue on those property boundaries. In keeping with the decision made
last month, which was to approve an 8 foot chain-link slatted fence as meeting the requirement
for the screening.

Chairman Dalling said he was keeping it as it was originally approved. He asked if they could
pull up the specs for the proposed chain-link product.

Ms. Laughlin explained that a standard chain-link fence with slats has a 75% visibility factor.
The product that the applicant is proposing has a 95% visibility factor.

Commissioner Beck asked if it was called a chain-link fence. (Yes)



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 15 of 21

***Motion: Conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit No. 3-19 subject to the conditions
in the City of Elko Staff Report dated February 25, 2019, with modifications listed as
follows:

1. The conditional use permit is granted to the property owner allowing for the
development of commercial storage units and RV Storage, either indoor or
outdoor.

2. The permit shall be personal to the property owner and applicable only to the
specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to
another owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use,
signifying that all zoning and site development requirements imposed in
connection with the permit have been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall
thereafter be transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the
maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance
with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the
property owner.

3. The conditional use permit shall automatically lapse and be of no effect one year
from the date of its issue unless the permit holder is actively engaged in
developing the specific property in use for which the permit was issued.

4. Landscaping shall be such that it does not impact sight triangle.
5. Landscaping is required in conformance with City Code. Landscaping of the 12th

Street and Opal Drive right-of-ways is required and may be factored in
determining conformance with the code. All landscaping shall be maintained in a
manner acceptable to the City of Elko at all times.

6. Lighting shall be cutoff and shielded from the residential properties
7. The Conditional Use Permit is to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder

within 90 days after the approval of the conditional use permit.
8. Conformance with 9-8 of Elko City Code is required to cutoff peak flow increases

in stormwater discharges.
9. Access to the property shall be limited to Opal Drive as shown on the plans.
10. The fence, as presented in the CUP application, is approved and required by the

Planning Commission.

Building Department:
1. The proposed chain link fence will require permit and approval through City of

Elko Building Department.

Fire Department:
1. The applicant will work with the Fire Department to meet the 2012 International

Fire Code D 103.5 Access for Fire Personnel.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were the proposed development is in
conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The proposed
development is in conformance with the existing transportation infrastructure and the
Transportation Component of the Master Plan. The site is suitable for the proposed use.
The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Program.
The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses. The proposed use is in
conformance with City Code 3-2-10(B) General Commercial with the approval of the
Conditional Use Permit. The proposed development is in conformance with Sections 3-2-3,
3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-8 and 3-2-18 of the Elko City Code



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 16 of 21

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

Mr. Wilkinson informed the applicant and public that there is an appeal process. There is a
limitation of 10 days.

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

1. Review, consideration and possible approval of Final Plat No. 14-18, filed by
Jordanelle Third Mortgage, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled
Tower Hills Unit 2 involving the proposed division of approximately 17.05 acres of
property into 23 lots and one remainder parcel for residential development within the
R1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally southwest of the terminus of Deerfield Way
and Chukar Drive.  (APN 001-929-124).

Ms. Laughlin went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated February 25, 2019. Staff
recommended approval with the findings and conditions in the staff report with the removal of
Conditions No. 9, 11, and 13, which have already been completed.

Mr. Thibault recommended approval.

Mr. Holmes recommended approval.

Mr. Wilkinson recommended approval as presented by staff as long as we strike the conditions
mentioned by Ms. Laughlin.

Ms. Laughlin pointed that the Fire Department did have one condition in the Staff Report. She
asked if the Fire Department still wanted that condition.

Mr. Holmes stated that that condition had been satisfied, so the Planning Commission could
strike the Fire Department condition.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to conditionally approve
Final Plat No. 14-18 subject to the conditions in the City of Elko Staff Report dated
February 25, 2019 with modifications listed as follows:

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance Agreement in accordance with Section
3-3-21 of city code. The Performance Agreement shall be secured in accordance
with Section 3-3-22 of city code. In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of city code, the
public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two (2) years
of the date of Final Plat approval by the City Council unless extended as stipulated
in city code.



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 17 of 21

2. The Performance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council at the time of
Final Map approval by the City Council.

3. The developer shall enter into the Performance Agreement within 30 days of
approval of the final map by City Council.

4. The final map is approved for 23 single family residential lots and 1 remainder lot.
5. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter.
6. State approvals of the construction plans and final map are required.
7. Update the Treasurer’s jurat to reflect Cheryl Paul instead of Rebecca Erickson.
8. Conformance with Preliminary Plat conditions.
9. Civil improvements are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.
10. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the

qualified engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with
the required inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal
to the City of Elko. The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest
edition Standard Specifications for Public Works. All Right –of-Way and utility
improvements are to be certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.

11. Construction, with the exception of grading, shall not commence prior to Final plat
approval by the City Council, issuance of a will serve letter by the city and approval
of the civil improvement plans by the State.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were the subdivision is in
conformance with the Land Use and Transportation Components of the Master Plan. The
subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-4 – Establishment of Zoning Districts. The
subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-5(B) R1 – Residential Single-Family Zoning
District. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and
Loading Regulations. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-7 – Final Map (Stage III).
The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-8 – Content and Format of Final Map
Submission. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-9 – General Provisions for
Subdivision Design. a. the subdivision does not appear to be unsuitable for use by reason of
flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation,
extreme topography, erosion susceptibility, or similar conditions which are likely to prove
harmful to the health and safety and general welfare of the community or the future
property owners. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-10 – Street Location and
Arrangement. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-11 – Street Design. The
subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-12 – Block Design. The subdivision is in
conformance with 3-3-13 – Lot Planning. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-14 –
Easement Planning. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-15 – Street Naming. The
subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-16 – Street Lighting Design Standards. The
subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-17 – Responsibility for Improvements. The
subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-18 – Construction Plans. The subdivision is in
conformance with 3-3-19 – Construction and Inspection. The subdivision is in conformance
with 3-3-20 – Required Improvements. The sub-divider shall enter into a performance
agreement to address the conditions found in 3-3-21 – Performance Agreements. The sub-
divider shall provide a performance and maintenance guarantee as stipulated in the
performance agreement and 3-3-22 – Performance and Maintenance Guarantee. The
subdivision is in conformance with 3-8 Floodplain Management. The Final Plat is in
conformance with the Preliminary Plat.



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 18 of 21

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

2. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Vacation
No. 2-19, filed by Robert Morley on behalf of Trinidy Jay Shippy and Kathryn
Justine Shippy, for the vacation of the 30’ roadway and utility easement located
along the west property line of APNs 039-001-007, 039-001-008, and 039-001-009,
consisting of an area approximately 26,225 square feet, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the west corner of the intersection of
Last Chance Road and Industrial Way. (APNs 039-001-007, 039-001-008, and 039-
001-009)

Robert Morley, 640 Idaho Street, explained that he was representing Mr. Shippy, which was in
attendance as well. Mr. Shippy owns the three parcels in question. Along the westerly line of
those parcels there is a 30’ roadway and utility easement that was granted to the City for access
to the well that is north of the parcels, and to put a water line in. With the development of
parcels, because it’s an easement that is granted to the City for access, Mr. Shippy has a gate
across the access but he can’t lock it, because he can’t restrict the access. It is a security issue at
this point. Anyone can drive down the easement and access the back of Mr. Shippy’s buildings
where he stores materials. What they are proposing to vacate the portion of the easement that is
shown on the plan, so that Mr. Shippy can secure and fence off the access and lock it. In return
they are proposing to grant an easement to the City and also to relocate the water line that is in
the existing easement to the new easement.

Ms. Laughlin went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated February 26, 2019. Staff
recommended approval with the findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report.

Mr. Thibault recommended approval with the two conditions that were listed in the Staff Report
for the Engineering Department.

Mr. Holmes had no comment.

Mr. Wilkinson recommended approval as presented by staff.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a resolution which
conditionally approves Vacation No. 2-19 subject to the conditions listed in the City of Elko
Staff Report dated February 26, 2019, listed as follows:

1. The applicant is responsible for all costs associated with the recordation of the
vacation.

2. Written response from all non-City utilities is on file with the City of Elko with
regard to the vacation in accordance with NRS 278.480(6) before the order is
recorded.



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 19 of 21

Engineering Department:
1. The granting of the new easement shall be recorded prior to the recording of the

resolution vacating this existing easement.
2. The new water line shall be constructed and the old water line abandoned in place,

prior to the vacation of the easement.

Utility Department:
1. Submit construction drawings for approval by City showing new water main and

abandonment of old.
2. Gate over existing easement
3. New water infrastructure is accepted prior to easement vacation.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were the proposed vacation is in
conformance with NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive. The proposed vacation is in
conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use Component. The proposed
vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Transportation Component.
The easement proposed for vacation is not located within the Redevelopment Area. The
proposed vacation with the recommended conditions is in conformance with Section 8-7 of
City Code. The proposed vacation will not materially injure with public and is in the best
interest of the City. Elko County has provided a letter is support of the proposed vacation.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Gratton Miller.

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

3. Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the City of
Elko Master Plan, specifically Atlas Map 12 and the Transportation component, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Ms. Laughlin explained that we have this initiation to amend the City of Elko Master Plan. There
are two sections that Ms. Laughlin was proposing to be amended. This was brought upon by a
subdivision development that recently had a Stage 1 Meeting, and looking at how that is in
relation to the Master Plan. Currently, El Armuth Drive is shown in the Master Plan as a future
roadway from Mountain City Highway to a connection at the frontage road. Due to some
property owners taking a quiet claim deed of the section of land, there is no possibility of the
connection between Sagecrest Drive and Celtic Way. There are also some topography issues
with a major drainage that would make it difficult to build a connection road. In the
Transportation Document it is proposed to change the wording on El Armuth Drive to state that
Mountain City Highway to Sagecrest Drive would be El Armuth, and Celtic Way down to

Hondo Lane. There would not be a connection to the frontage road. She explained that the
area that is clouded is shown as dashed for proposed future roads. We would make it solid from
Mountain City Highway to Sagecrest and eliminate Sagecrest to Celtic. It would go from Celtic
down to Hondo. She proposed that Sundance Drive be the connecting element to the frontage
road.



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 20 of 21

Mr. Thibault had no comments.

Mr. Holmes said in light of the recent fires in the area, he recommended approval.

Mr. Wilkinson said he was in favor of approval.

Commissioner Miller asked if there wouldn’t be a connection from Sundance to El Armuth at
any point in the future.

Ms. Laughlin explained that the way El Armuth is shown tying in and connecting to the frontage
road. If you look at the end of El Armuth at Hondo Lane there is a property there, so there
wouldn’t be a possibility to connect that into frontage. Sundance might have a possibility for
some sort of connectivity. Sundance as a connection to the frontage road is more feasible than El
Armuth.

Mr. Wilkinson said in reality there may be a frontage road extended up into the vacant area
below Sundance, you may not have any connectivity through the County property. For the most
part we will probably be looking at Cattle Drive through Sections 19 and 18 providing the
connectivity back up to Mountain City Highway.

***Motion: Initiate an amendment to the City of Elko Master Plan Future
Transportation Atlas Map 12 and Transportation Component, and direct staff to bring the
item back as a resolution and public hearing.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Gratton Miller.

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

II. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

Ms. Laughlin report that on February 12th the City Council they approved the annual
update to the appraiser list. They also approved Vacation 4-18. They approved the Final
Plat for Humboldt Hills and their Performance Agreement. The Final Plat for Great
Basin Estates continues to be tabled. They also approved the 2018 Annual Planning
Commission Report. Gratton Miller was appointed as a Planning Commissioner. The
Land Inventory Update was approved. City Council approved the initiation to acquire
property for the Cattle Drive extension. They also approved a waiver for curb and Gutter
for Medallus Urgent Care on the corner of 12th and Lamoille Highway. At the February
26th meeting the City Council accepted the petition for Vacation 2-19. They approved a
resolution for the land sale of a parcel of land located on the corner of 8th and Elm
Street. They finalized the Vacation with MP Elko for the small easement along the north
and east property lines, where the Dotty’s expansion is going. They also approved the
Rezone for Defty Family Trust for the property that is next to Golden Gate Petroleum.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.



March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 21 of 21

Ms. Laughlin reported that there was an RDA meeting on February 26th. They approved
the annual report, and Ms. Laughlin gave a presentation on the progress that has been
made from 2008 to present for the RDA.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Miscellaneous Elko County

E. Training

Ms. Laughlin said that she had included in the packet a two page training on What Every
City Planner Would like Their Planning Commissioners to Know. She also provided a
webcast.

Mr. Wilkinson asked Ms. Laughlin to provide the RDA presentation to the Planning
Commission.

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There was no public comment at this time.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jeff Dalling, Chairman Tera Hooiman, Secretary



Agenda Item # I.A.1 

Created on 4/18/2018  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review and consideration of Tentative Map No. 5-19, filed by Granite Holdings 

LLC., for the development of a subdivision entitled Orchard Cove Phase 2 involving 

the proposed division of approximately 6.947 acres of property into 19 lots and a 

remainder parcel for residential development within the R (Single Family and 

Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  April 2, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS, NEW BUSINESS  

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located south of the intersection of Colt 

Drive and Winchester Dr.  (APN 001-928-004) 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council conditionally approve 

Tentative Map 5-19 based on facts, findings and conditions as presented in Staff 

Report dated March 21, 2019. 

 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated March 21, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Granite Holdings LLC 

1957 Ruby Vista Drive 

Elko, NV 89801 

cowboys197594@yahoo.com 

 

Shanks Engineering 

982 Wolf Creek Drive 

Spring Creek, NV 89815 

shankseng@gmail.com 

 

mailto:cowboys197594@yahoo.com
mailto:shankseng@gmail.com




Page 1 of 16

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: March 21, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: April 2, 2019
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.1
APPLICATION NUMBER: Tentative Map 5-19
APPLICANT: Granite Holdings, LLC

A Tentative Map for the proposed division of approximately 6.947 acres of property into 19
lots and one remainder parcel for residential development within an R (Single Family and
Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND to CONDITIONALLY APPROVE subject to findings of fact and conditions
stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 2 of 16

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBERS: 001-928-004

PARCEL SIZE: 6.94 Acres

EXISTING ZONING: (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is bordered by:

 North: Residential (R) / Developed
 East: Residential (R) and Commercial (C) / Developed
 South: Agriculture (AG) / Undeveloped
 West: Residential (R) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is currently undeveloped and is characterized with moderate sloping
topography throughout the parcel.

 The property will be accessed off of Colt Drive and Orchard Cove Drive.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODES:

Applicable Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans, and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Airport Master Plan
 City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer

Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report - November
2012

 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Chapter 3-3 Subdivisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5, Residential Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management
 City of Elko Public Ways and Property – Title 9 Chapter 8 Post Construction Runoff

Control and Water Quality Management



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 3 of 16

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

1. The property owner and applicant is Granite Holdings LLC.
2. The area proposed for subdivision is identified as APN 001-928-004.
3. The area is undeveloped.
4. The area is located south of Colt Drive and east of the terminus of Orchard Cove Drive.
5. The area proposed for subdivision is a continuation of the Orchard Cove Phase 1

subdivision.
6. A Stage 1 meeting for the proposed subdivision was held on January 16, 2019 A second

Stage 1 meeting was held on January 30, 2019 where a revised subdivision was proposed.
7. The area proposed for subdivision is located within the R-Single Family Multiple Family

Residential zone district and a zone amendment is not proposed.
8. The total area proposed for subdivision is approximately 6.947 acres in size.
9. The Tentative Map shows a division of approximately 2.929 divided into 19 lots with one

remainder parcel approximately 3.085 acres in size.
10. The proposed density is approximately 6.487 units per acre.
11. Phasing of the subdivision is not proposed.
12. Approximately .753 acres are being offered for dedication. The dedication includes Colt

Drive and Orchard Cove Drive.
13. Approximately .179 acres are being offered for dedication for a 30’ wide public utility

drainage and access right-of-way.

MASTER PLAN

Land use:

1. The land use is shown as Medium Density Residential. Medium Density is identified as
having a density of 5 - 8 units per acre.

2. R-Single Family and Multiple Family Residential is listed as a corresponding district for
the Medium Density Designation in the Master Plan.

3. The listed Goal of the Land Use component states “Promote orderly, sustainable growth
and efficient land use to improve quality of life and ensure new development meets the
needs of all residents and visitors”.

4. Objective 1 under the Land Use component of the Master Plan states “Promote a diverse
mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of lifestyles, incomes, and age
groups.”

o Best Practice 1.1 – Single Family – The proposed subdivision meets several of the
methods described to achieve a diverse mix of single family homes in the
community.

o Best Practice 1.3 – The location of the proposed subdivision appears to support
the City striving for a blended community by providing a mix of housing types in
the neighborhood and is supported by existing infrastructure.

5. Objective 8 of the Land use component of the Master Plan states “Ensure that new
development does not negatively impact County-wide natural systems, or public/federal
lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc. or pose a danger to human
health and safety.” Staff believes there will be no negative impacts to natural systems and
no issue with regard to human health and safety.



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 4 of 16

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Land Use component of
the Master Plan.

Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from Colt Drive and Orchard Cove Drive.

2. Colt Drive and Orchard Cove Drive are classified as Residential Local roadways.

3. The Master Plan recommends a right of way width of 50 feet for a Residential Local.

4. The proposed streets, Colt Drive and Orchard Cove Drive, will function as local
residential streets.

5. Upon full build out of Phase 2, the proposed subdivision is expected to generate
approximately 181.83 additional Average Daily Trips based on 9.57 trips/townhome
(Source ITE trip Generation, 8th Edition).

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
Component of the Master Plan.

ELKO AIRPORT MASTER PLAN

The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master Plan.

CITY OF ELKO DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY, LANDUSE, WATER
INFRASTRUCTURE, SANITARY SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE, TRANSPORTATION
INFRASTRUCTURE AND ANNEXATION POTENTIAL REPORT - NOVEMBER 2102

The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land
use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and
Annexation Potential Report - November 2012.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property is located outside of any capture zone for City of Elko wells.
2. The sanitary sewer will be connected to a programed sewer system and all street drainage

will report to a storm sewer system.

The proposed subdivision and development are in conformance with the Wellhead Protection
Program.

SECTION 3-3-5 TENTATIVE MAP STAGE (STAGE II)

Tentative Map 3-3-5(A) –A zoning amendment is not required.

Tentative Map Approval 3-3-5(E)(2)(a)-(k) – Requires the following findings:



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 5 of 16

a. Environmental and health laws and regulations concerning water and air pollution, the
disposal of solid waste, facilities to supply water, community or public sewage disposal
and, where applicable, individual systems for sewage disposal.

 The proposed subdivision will be connected to the city’s water supply system,
programmed sewer system and is required to be in compliance with all applicable
federal, state and local requirements.

b. The availability of water which meets applicable health standards and is sufficient in
quantity for the reasonably foreseeable needs of the subdivision.

 The City of Engineering Department is required to model the anticipated water
consumption of the subdivision. The City of Elko Utility Department will be
required to submit a “Tentative Will Serve Letter” to the State of Nevada. The
water modeling requires an update to reflect the increased number of lots. The
required commitment for water service for the proposed subdivision is
approximately 21.28 acre feet of water per year. The required peak hour
commitment for water service for the proposed subdivision is approximately 24.7
gpm. Current City wide annual water usage is approximately 50% of the total
allocated water rights.

 City of Elko currently has excess pumping capacity of 3,081 gpm.
Sufficient infrastructure and pumping capacity exists to provide the required
water volume to serve the proposed subdivision and development.

 The Developer will extend properly sized infrastructure as required for
development of the property.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not create an unreasonable
burden on the exiting water supply.

c. The availability and accessibility of utilities.

 Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed
development.

d. The availability and accessibility of public services such as schools, police protection,
transportation, recreation and parks.

 Schools, Fire and Police and Recreational Services are available throughout the
community.

e. Conformity with the zoning ordinances and the City’s master plan, except that if any
existing zoning ordinance is inconsistent with the City’s master plan, the zoning
ordinance takes precedence.

 The Master Plan Land Use Map shows the area as Medium Density Residential.
The proposed subdivision and development have been designed in accordance
with the existing zoning R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential.

 The result is a density of 6.487 units per acre which meets the minimum density 4
units per acre specified in the Master Plan.



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 6 of 16

 The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the City’s Master Plan as well
as Zoning Ordinance.

f. General conformity with the City’s master plan of streets and highways.

 The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component
of the Master Plan.

g. The effect of the proposed subdivision on existing public streets and the need for new
streets or highways to serve the subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will add approximately 182 Average
Daily Trips to Colt Drive. Based on the threshold of 1000 ADT referenced in the
Master Plan, a traffic study is not required with this subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not cause unreasonable traffic
congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets.

h. Physical characteristics of the land, such as floodplain, slope and soil

 The proposed subdivision and subsequent development of the property is
expected to reduce the potential for erosion in the immediate area.  Development
of the property will not cause unreasonable soil erosion.

 A hydrology report is required with the Final Map and Construction Plan
submittal.

 The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in
unreasonable erosion or reduction in in the water holding capacity of the land
thereby creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition.

i. The recommendations and comments of those entities and persons reviewing the tentative
map pursuant to this Chapter and NRS 278.330 to 278.3485, inclusive.

j. The availability and accessibility of fire protection, including, but not limited to, the
availability and accessibility of water and services for the prevention and containment of
fires, including fires in wild lands.

k. The submission by the subdivider of an affidavit stating that the subdivider will make
provision for payment of the tax imposed by Chapter 375 of NRS and for compliance
with the disclosure and recording requirements of Subsection 5 of NRS 598.0923, if
applicable, by the subdivider or any successor in interest.

There are no obvious considerations or concerns which indicate the proposed subdivision would
not be in conformance with all applicable provisions.

SECTION 3-3-6 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF TENTATIVE MAP SUBMITTAL

Identification Data (B)(1) – The subdivision name, location and section, township and range,
with reference by dimension and bearing to a section corner or quarter-section corner, is shown
on Sheet T2.



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 7 of 16

Identification Data (B)(2) – The name, address, email and telephone number of the subdivider
is shown on Sheet T1.

Identification Data (B)(3) – The engineer’s name, address and telephone number is shown on
Sheet T1. The email address is not shown.

Identification Data (B)(4) – The scale is shown on Sheet T2.

Identification Data (B)(5) – The north point is shown on Sheet T2.

Identification Data (B)(6) – The date of initial preparation and dates of any subsequent
revisions are shown on Sheet T1 and T2.

Identification Data (B)(7) – A location map is shown on Sheet T1.

Identification Data (B)(8) – A legal description is not provided on the Tentative Map as
required.

Physical Conditions Data (C)(1) – A topographic map is shown on Sheet T4. The proposed
grading plan shows 8 to 20’ slopes along the rear lot line of Lots 8-11.

Physical Conditions Data (C)(2) – The developer has provided a 10’ dedicated drainage
easement along the south property line of lots 9-11 to protect the properties from up gradient
storm water as well as providing for storm water infrastructure and easement north of lot 19 and
extending to the future Pinion Road in order to capture any off site storm water.

Physical Conditions Data (C)(3) – There are no Special Flood Hazards within the proposed
subdivision.

Physical Conditions Data (C)(4) – Sheet T2 of the Map identifies all the roadways, easements
and corporate limits within and adjacent to the tract.

Physical Conditions Data (C)(5) – Dimensions of all subdivision boundaries are shown on the
map.

Physical Conditions Data (C)(6) – Gross and net acreage of subdivision is shown on Sheet T1.

Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data (F)(1) – The proposed street layout is
shown. All the streets are named and proposed for dedication. The grades of the proposed streets
are shown on the grading plan. The continuation of roadways is not required of the proposed
subdivision.

Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data (F)(2) – The lot layout with consecutively
numbered lots is shown. The area and dimensions for each lot are shown and the total number of
lots.

Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data (F)(3) – Typical easements will be
required along all lot lines. Revision to the tentative plat addressing the lot easements is required.

Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data (F)(4) – The required information for
street dedication is on Sheet 1.



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 8 of 16

Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data (F)(5) – A zone change is not proposed.

Proposed Deed Restrictions (G) – There are no CC & R’s proposed for the subdivision.

Preliminary Grading Plan (H) – A grading plan with estimated quantities is shown on Sheet
T4.

NPDES Permit Compliance (I) – The subdivider will be required to comply with the City of
Elko’s storm water regulations.

Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements (J)(1) – Sheet T3 shows the proposed sewage
disposal infrastructure connecting to the City’s infrastructure.

Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements (J)(2) – Sheet T3 shows the proposed water
supply infrastructure connected to the City’s infrastructure.

Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements (J)(3) – The Tentative Map shows storm water
infrastructure. A hydrology report will be required with Final Map and Construction Plan
submittal.

Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements (J)(4) – Utilities in addition to City utilities must
be provided with civil improvements plans required for final Map submittal.

Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements (J)(5) – The City will not require a traffic impact
study for the proposed subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBDIVISION DESIGN:

A. Conformance with Master Plan: The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the
Master Plan objectives for density and applicable zoning.

B. Public Facility Sites: No public facility sites are proposed for dedication.

C. Land suitability: The area proposed for subdivision is suitable for the proposed
development based on the findings in this report.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-9 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-10 STREET LOCATION AND ARRANGEMENT:

A. Conformance with Plan: The proposed subdivision extends Colt Drive and Orchard Cove
Drive.

B. Layout: Street continuation through the proposed subdivision is not required.

C. Extensions: No extensions are required as part of the proposed subdivision.

D. Arrangement of Residential Streets: The arrangement of streets prevents outside traffic
from utilizing the neighborhood for cut through traffic.

E. Protection of Residential Properties: There are no lots that have frontage or access from
arterial streets.



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 9 of 16

F. Parallel Streets: Consideration of street location is not required.

G. Topography: The residential streets have been designed to address the topography of the
area.

H. Alleys: No alleys are proposed.

I. Half Streets: There are no half streets proposed.

J. Dead End Streets: There are no dead end streets proposed.

K. Intersection Design: The proposed intersection with Orchard Cove Drive and Colt Drive
is code compliant.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-10 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-11 STREET DESIGN:

A. Required Right of Way Widths:

a. Colt Drive; Residential Street – 50 feet. The proposed right-of-way width for Colt
Drive is 50 feet.

b. Orchard Cove Drive; Residential Street: 50 feet. The proposed right-of-way width
for Orchard Cove Drive is 50 feet.

B. Street Grades: The proposed street grades are code compliant.

C. Vertical Curves: The vertical curves are code compliant.

D. Horizontal Alignment: The horizontal alignment of the streets and intersection

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-11 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-12 BLOCK DESIGN:

A. Maximum Length of Blocks: The block design does not exceed the maximum length of a
block and maximizes block length.

B. Sidewalks or Pedestrian ways: Pedestrian ways are not proposed.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-12 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-13 LOT PLANNING:

A. Lot Width, Depth and Area: The lots are in conformance with the specifications
stipulated for the zoning in Elko City Code 3-2-5 with the exception of Lot 8 which
doesn’t meet the minimum of 6,500 sq. ft. for a corner lot.  A modification of standards
will be required to be approved for the reduction in the lot area for Lot 8. All lots will
have improved frontage.

B. Lot Depth: The lots are in conformance with the stipulated lot depth in ECC 3-2-5. All
lots have fronts at least 60 feet in width.



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 10 of 16

C. Building Setback: The proposed subdivision, when developed, can meet setback
requirements as stipulated in ECC 3-2-5(G).

D. Side Lot Lines: The side lot lines are substantially at right angles to the street lines.
Deviations occur on inside curves and are appropriate.

E. Accessibility: Every lot abuts a proposed public street.

F. Prohibitions: There are no proposed prohibitions as there are no double frontage lots.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-13 of City code with the approval
of a modification of standard for the reduction of corner lot area for Lot 8.

SECTION 3-3-14 EASEMENT PLANNING:

A. Utility Easements: A note should be added to the Tentative Map specifying the side and
rear lot line easements. Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision.

B. Underground Utilities: Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision. The
utility companies, at their discretion, may request a wider easement on the rear lot line. A
note should be added to the Tentative Map stating the front, side and rear lot line
easements.

C. Lots Facing Curvilinear Streets. Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision.

D. Public Drainage Easement. There are two public drainage easements offered for
dedication.

E. Easement Land Not Considered and Considered in Minimum Lot Area Calculation.

F. Lots Backing On to Arterial Streets: There are no lots proposed which back onto an
arterial street.

G. Water and Sewer Lines: The utilities are shown in the streets.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-14 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-15 STREET NAMING:

The subdivider has proposed street names. The street names are the continuations of streets.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-15 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-16 STREET LIGHT DESIGN STANDARDS:

Conformance is required with presentation of civil improvements plans.



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 11 of 16

SECTIONS 3-3-17 through 3-3-22 (inclusive)

All the referenced sections are applicable to final Map submission, approval and construction of
civil improvement plans.

SECTION 3-3-23 PARK LAND DEDICATIONS

There is no offer of dedication for park lands.

SECTION 3-3-25 MODIFICATION OF STANDARDS:

1. Lots 1-8 widths are determined based on the continuation of Orchard Cove Drive. Lots 1-
7 are at the minimum lot with of 60’ and the remainder is lot 8 which meets the minimum
lot width but not the minimum lot area for a corner lot.
Section 3-3-13(A) - Lot 8 is approved as less than the minimum corner lot area of 6,500
sq. ft.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS:

Section 3-2-3(C)(1) of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions shall
apply:

Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as "principal uses
permitted" in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as principal uses; all other uses shall
be prohibited as principal uses.

Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or conditional
uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land is held by
the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of flooding,
concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme topography,
low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features likely to be harmful to the
health, safety and general welfare of the community. The planning commission, in applying the
provisions of this section, shall state in writing the particular facts upon which its conclusions are
based. The applicant shall have the right to present evidence contesting such determination to the
city council if he or she so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw
the determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City code.

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS:

3. Section 3-2-4(B) Required Conformity to District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection:

4. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof
shall be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this
title.



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 12 of 16

The proposed subdivision with the approved development agreement is in conformance with
Section 3-2-4 of City code.

SECTION 3-2-5(E) R Single Family and Multiple Family Residential:

1. Section 3-2-5(E)(2). Principal Uses Permitted:

a. Adult care facility which serves ten (10) or fewer.
b. Electric power substations, sewer lift stations, and water pump stations wherein

service to district residents requires location within the district.
c. Multiple-family residential units, including a duplex, triplex, or a fourplex located

on a single lot or parcel, provided area and setback requirements are met.
d. One single-family dwelling of a permanent character in a permanent location with

each dwelling unit on its own parcel of land and provided all area and setback
requirements are met.

e. Publicly owned and operated parks and recreation areas and centers.
f. Residential facility for groups of ten (10) or fewer.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(E)(2).
Conformance with Section 3-2-5(E) is required as the subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-2-5(G)

1. Lot areas are shown. Lot 8 doesn’t meet the required minimum lot area for a corner lot
and therefore will be required a modification of standards.

2. Lot dimensions are shown and are in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-5(G).

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of City
code with the approved modification of standard for Lot 8.

SECTION 3-2-17

1. The proposed roadways are classified as a residential street in accordance with the Master
Plan.

2. The proposed lots are large enough to develop the required off-street parking to be
located outside the front and interior side yards.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-17. Conformance
with Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT

The proposed subdivision and development is not located in a designated special flood hazard
area and is in conformance with section 3-8 of City code.

TITLE 9 CHAPTER 8 POST CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF CONTROL AND WATER
QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Final design of the subdivision is required to conform to the requirements of this title. The
tentative plat storm drain infrastructure extended into and through the area.



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 13 of 16

OTHER

The following permits will be required for the project:

1. Storm water general permit, required submittals to the City of Elko are a plan view showing
the storm water controls, a copy of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and
a copy of the certified confirmation letter.

2. A Surface Area Disturbance (SAD) is required in the disturbed area is equal to or greater
than five acres. A copy of the SAD permit is required to be submitted to the City of Elko.

3. A street cut permit from the City of Elko.

4. A grading permit from the City of Elko.

5. All other applicable permits and fees required by the City of Elko.

6. The City of Elko also requires submittal of the plans from the individual utility companies
before permits will be issued for the project.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Land Use
component of the Master Plan.

2. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
Component of the Master Plan.

3. The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master
Plan.

4. The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the City of Elko Development
Feasibility, Land use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation
Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report - November 2012.

5. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

6. The proposed subdivision and development are in conformance with the Wellhead
Protection Program. The sanitary sewer will be connected to a programed sewer system
and all street drainage will report to a storm sewer system.

7. A zoning amendment is not required.

8. In accordance with section 3-3-5(E)(2) the proposed subdivision and development will
not result in undue water or air pollution based on the following:

a. There are no obvious considerations are concerns which indicate the proposed
subdivision would not be in conformance with all applicable environmental and
health laws and regulations

b. There is adequate capacity within the City’s water supply to accommodate the
proposed subdivision.



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 14 of 16

c. The proposed subdivision and development will not create an unreasonable
burden on the exiting water supply.

d. There is adequate capacity at the Water Reclamation Facility to support the
proposed subdivision and development.

e. The proposed subdivision and development will be connected to the City’s
programmed sanitary sewer system therefore the ability of soils to support waste
disposal does not require evaluation prior to Tentative Map approval.

f. Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed
development.

g. Schools, Fire and Police and Recreational Services are available throughout the
community.

h. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance applicable zoning
ordinances and is conformance with the Master Plan.

i. The proposed subdivision and development will not cause unreasonable traffic
congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets.

j. The area is not located within a designated flood zone. Concentrated storm water
runoff has been addressed as shown on the grading plan.

k. The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in
unreasonable erosion or reduction in in the water holding capacity of the land
thereby creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition.

9. The proposed subdivision submittal in in conformance with Section 3-3-6 of City code
with the following exception:

 Legal Description is not shown on the Tentative Map. This is not a significant
deficiency.

10. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-9 of City code.

11. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-10 of City code.

12. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-11 of City code.

13. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-12 of City code.

14. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-13 of City code with the
approval of Lot 8 not meeting the minimum area for a corner lot.

15. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-14 of City code with the
following exception:

 A note should be added to the Tentative Map stating the front, side and rear lot line
easements. This is not a significant deficiency.



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 15 of 16

16. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-15 of City code.

17. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City
code.

18. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City
code.

19. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(E)(2).
Conformance with Section 3-2-5(E) is required as the subdivision develops.

20. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of
City code with the approval of the modification of standard for Lot 8 minimum lot area.

21. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-17.
Conformance with Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision develops.

22. The proposed subdivision and development is not located in a designated special flood
hazard area and is in conformance with section 3-8 of City code.

23. The proposed subdivision design shall conform to Title 9 Chapter 8 of city code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

CONDITIONS:

1. The subdivider is to comply with all provisions of the NAC and NRS pertaining to the
proposed subdivision.

2. Tentative map approval constitutes authorization for the sub-divider to proceed with
preparation of the final map and associated construction plans.

3. Tentative map approval does not constitute authorization to proceed with site
improvements, with the exception of authorized grading, prior to approval of the
construction plans by the City and the State.

4. The applicant submits an application for final map within a period of four (4) years in
accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a). Approval of the tentative map will automatically
lapse at that time.

5. A soils report is required with final map submittal.

6. A hydrology report is required with final map submittal.

7. Final map construction plans improvements are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.

8. The subdivision design and construction shall comply with Title 9 Chapter 8 of City
code.



TENTATIVE MAP 05-19
Orchard Cove Phase 2
APN: 001-928-004

Page 16 of 16

9. The Utility Department will issue an Intent to serve letter upon approval of the tentative
map by the City Council.

10. A modification from standards be approved by City Council for Lot 8 to have a reduced
minimum lot area for a corner lot.

11. Revise the tentative map to include the legal description: Parcel 5 of File No. 504955.
The revision is required prior to City Council consideration of the tentative map.

12. Revise the tentative map to include a note specifying the side, front and rear lot line
easements. The revision is required prior to City Council consideration of the tentative
map.

13. Revise the tentative map to include the engineer’s email address. The revision is required
prior to City Council consideration of the tentative map.





















































Agenda Item # I.A.2 

Created on 03/20/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution 1-19, containing 

amendments to the Atlas Map #12 and Transportation component of the City of 

Elko Master Plan, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: April 2, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 30 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Planning Commission reviewed and initiated the 

amendment to the City of Elko Master Plan at its March 5, 2019 meeting.   
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Transportation document and Atlas map #12. 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to adopt Resolution 1-19, containing amendments to 

the Transportation Component and Atlas map #12 of the City of Elko Master Plan; 

directing that an attested copy of the foregoing parts, amendments, extensions of 

and/or additions to the Elko City Master Plan be certified to the City Council; 

further directing that an attested copy of this Commission’s report on the proposed 

changes and additions shall have be filed with the City Council; and recommending 

to City Council to adopt said amendments by resolution. CL 
 

9. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

10. Agenda Distribution:  



CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department

1751 College Avenue · Elko, Nevada 89801 · (775) 777-7160 · Fax (775) 777-7119

Website: www.elkocity.com
Email: planning@ci.elko.nv.us

Memorandum
To: Planning Commission
From: Cathy Laughlin –City Planner
Date: March 20, 2019
Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 2, 2019

Agenda Item:

1. Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution 1-19, containing amendments
to the Atlas Map #12 and the Transportation Component of the City of Elko Master Plan,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Additional Information:

The City of Elko Master Plan Transportation component and Atlas Map #12 show El Armuth
Drive extending from Mountain City Highway to a frontage road along I-80. The existing
mapped area for El Armuth Drive is not actual dedicated right-of-way but is a parcel (Parcel C)
owned by the original property owner or their heirs of the original map recorded with Elko
County Recorder as File No. 30415 recorded 5/31/1967. With a recent Stage 1 subdivision
meeting, Staff has determined that the extension from Sagecrest Drive to Celtic Way is very
unlikely.  There have been two property owners on Royal Crest Drive which have done a quiet
claim deed on portions of Parcel C adjacent to their property and therefore we would never have
a full 60’ right-of-way width without those same property owners dedicating it back to the City
of Elko.  There is also a large drainage between Royal Crest Drive and Celtic Way that would be
cost prohibitive to develop the roadway. El Armuth south of Celtic Way towards I-80, there is a
property south of Hondo Lane in which the City of Elko would have to purchase in order to have
connectivity to the future I-80 frontage road. With this Master Plan amendment, it is proposed as
a more realistic possibility to have the connection of the frontage road to Sundance Drive.



ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NO. 1-19

A RESOLUTION OF THE ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION
AMENDING THE ELKO CITY MASTER PLAN UPDATING THE PROPOSED
FUTURE ROADWAY NETWORK MAP ATLAS #12 AND TRANSPORTATION

COMPONENT BY ELIMINATING THE CONNECTION OF EL ARMUTH
DRIVE BETWEEN SAGECREST DRIVE AND CELTIC WAY AND

ELIMINATING THE EXTENTION OF EL ARMUTH TO THE FUTURE I-80
FRONTAGE ROAD AND ADDING SUNDANCE DRIVE CONNECTION TO

THE FUTURE I-80 FRONTAGE ROAD

WHEREAS, the Elko City Planning Commission conducted a public hearing in
accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes, Section 278.210 and the Elko City Code,
Section 3-4-12, and

WHEREAS, the Elko City Planning Commission received public input, and reviewed and
examined documents and materials related to amending Proposed Future Roadway
Network Atlas Map #12 and the Transportation Component of the Elko City Master Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Elko City Planning Commission that
amended portions of the Elko City Master Plan within the Proposed Future Roadway
Network Map Atlas #12 and the Transportation Component, are attached hereto at
Exhibit 1 and 2, and that the amendments to the Elko City Master Plan attached hereto at
Exhibit 1 and 2 are hereby adopted.

All previous versions of the amended portions of Elko City Master Plan, and all
resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

An attested copy of the Elko Planning Commission’s report on the aforementioned
changes and additions to the Elko City Master Plan shall be filed with the Elko City
Council within forty (40) days of this Resolution.

The amendment to the Elko City Master Plan attached hereto at Exhibit 1 and 2, or any
portion thereof, shall be effective upon adoption by the Elko City Council.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of April 2019 by a vote of not less than two-
thirds of the membership of the Planning Commission per NRS 278.210 (3) and Elko
City Code Section 3-4-12 (B).

By:
Jeff Dalling, Chairman



Attest:
Tera Hooiman, Secretary

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:





__________________________________________________________________________ Transportation 

 

 Transportation page 8

 

� Country Club Drive 
� Court Street, Oak Street to 5th Street and 9th Street to 14th Street 
� Delaware Street, between Statice Street and Paradise Drive  
� El Armuth Drive (Mountain City Highway to Sagecrest Dr. & Celtic 

Way to Hondo Lane) 
� Enfield Avenue 
� Fairway Drive, between Skyline Drive and Keppler Drive 
� Forest Lane, between Montrose Lane and Enfield Avenue 
� Garcia Lane – South 11th Street 
� Highland Drive 
� Indian View Heights Drive 
� Jennings Way, south of Mountain City Highway 
� Keppler Drive  
� La Nae Drive, between Bluffs Avenue and Cottonwood Drive 
� Mittry Avenue (Chris Ave to College Parkway) 
� Montrose Lane 
� Opal Drive 
� Rocky Road (future) 
� Ruby View Drive 
� Sagecrest Drive 
� Sewell Drive 
� Spruce Road, between 5th Street and -Jennings Way 
� Stitzel Road, between Pinion Road and Liberty Drive 
� Sundance Drive 

 
 
Regional Roadways 
 
Regional Roadways are those collector or arterial streets 
characterized by moderate to high traffic volumes with significant 
traffic origins or traffic destinations outside of the corporate 
boundaries of the City of Elko. The following are considered 
Regional Roadways: 
 

� Jennings Way Loop 
� 5th Street 
� Ruby Vista Drive, east of Jennings Way 
� Delaware Street 
� Idaho Street 
� Silver Street  
� Manzanita Lane 
� 12th Street, south of Idaho Street 
� Last Chance Road 
� Bullion Road, west of Errecart Boulevard 
� Errecart Boulevard 
 
* Note that the Elko City Council approved the above list of Regional 
Roads; however, at this time Manzanita Lane and Last Chance Road are 
not recognized by the RTC as regional roads. 

Roadway Capacity 

Level of service (LOS) is a term used to measure and describe the 
operational conditions of a roadway network.  Letters A through F are 
used to measure the LOS of a roadway segment or intersection.  The 
following definitions are given for each level of service letter. 



Agenda Item # I.B.1 

Created on 1/23/2017  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration and possible approval of Final Map No. 6-19, filed by Copper 

Trails, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled Copper Trails Phase 2 

involving the proposed division of approximately 19.194 acres of property into 29 

lots and 1 remainder parcel for residential development within the R (Single Family 

and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  April 2, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: MISC. ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS  

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located at the intersection of Mittry 

Avenue and Copper Street (APN 001-610-114).  

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council accept, on behalf of the 

public, the parcels of land offered for dedication for public use in conformity with 

the terms of the offer of dedication; that the final map substantially complies with 

the tentative map; that the City Council approve an the agreement to install 

improvements in accordance with the approved construction plans that satisfies the 

requirements of this Chapter and conditionally approve Final Map 6-19 with 

findings and conditions listed in Staff Report dated March 18, 2019. 

 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated March 18, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Copper Trails LLC 

207 Brookwood Drive 

Elko, NV 89801 

elkoluke@gmail.com 

 

Carter Engineering 

lanalcarter@live.com 

 

 

mailto:elkoluke@gmail.com
mailto:lanalcarter@live.com




Page 1 of 8

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

DATE: March 18, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: April 2, 2019
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.B.1
APPLICATION NUMBER: Final Map 6-19
APPLICANT: Copper Trails, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Copper Trails Subdivision Phase 2

A Final Map for the division of approximately 19.194 acres into 29 lots for single family
residential development within an R (Single Family and Multiple Family Residential)
Zoning District and one remaining lot.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND to APPROVE this item subject to findings of fact and conditions.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



FINAL PLAT 6-19
Copper Trails Subdivision Ph. 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 2 of 8

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBERS: 001-610-114

PARCEL SIZE: 5.140 acres for this Unit 2 of the subdivision with 1
remainder lot for a total area of 19.194 acres. In
Phase 2, approximately 1.119 acres are offered for
dedication for street development

EXISTING ZONING: (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by:

 Northwest: Agriculture (AG) / Undeveloped
 Northeast: Agriculture  (AG) / Undeveloped
 Southwest: Residential (R) / Developed
 Southeast: Residential (R) / Undeveloped

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
 The property is an undeveloped residential parcel.
 The proposed subdivision is the second phase of the Copper Trails Subdivision.
 The property has moderately sloping topography throughout the parcel.
 The property will be accessed off Copper Street.

MASTER PLAN, COORDINATING PLANS, and CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans, and City Code Sections are:
 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(E) Single-Family and Multiple Family Residential

District
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning Districts Area, Setback And

Height Schedule For Principal Buildings
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Zoning – Chapter 3 Subdivisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

1. The City Council conditionally approved the Tentative Map at its meeting on January 8,
2019.



FINAL PLAT 6-19
Copper Trails Subdivision Ph. 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 3 of 8

2. The property is identified as APN 001-610-114, shown as parcel G on map 748288
recorded at the Elko County Recorder’s Office.

3. The total subdivided area is approximately 19.194 acres in area.
4. The proposed subdivision consists of 29 lots residential lots with one remainder parcel

approximately 14.055 acres in size.
5. The proposed density is 5.64 units per acre.
6. Approximately 1.119 acres are offered for dedication for street development and drainage

purposes.
7. The property abuts the intersection of Copper Street and Mittry Ave.
8. An amendment to the Development Agreement including Phase 2 in the Master Plan

Development was approved by City Council on January 8, 2019 under Ordinance 838.

MASTER PLAN:

1. Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with
review and approval of the Preliminary Plat. The Final Map is in conformance with the
Preliminary Plat.

2. Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with
review and approval of the Preliminary Plat. The Final Map is in conformance with the
Preliminary Plat.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation components
of the Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

1. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

Conformance with the Redevelopment Plan is not required.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. A small portion of the property lies inside the 30-year capture zone and the remainder of
the subdivision lies outside any capture zone for the City of Elko. The proposed
subdivision will be connected to a programmed sewer system.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan.

SECTIONS 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G) and 3-2-17

1. The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of
code during the preliminary plat process.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G) and
3-2-17 of city code.

SECTION 3-3-7 FINAL MAP STAGE (STAGE III)

Requirements for Presentation of Final Map or Series of Final Maps (B)(1) – The subdivider
shall present to the City Council on or before the second anniversary of the date on which the
subdivider recorded the first in the series of final maps: (I) a final map, prepared in accordance
with the tentative map, for the entire area for which the tentative map has been approved; or (II)



FINAL PLAT 6-19
Copper Trails Subdivision Ph. 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 4 of 8

the next final map in the series of final maps covering a portion of the approved tentative map. If
the subdivider fails to comply with the provisions of the preceding sentence, all proceedings
concerning the subdivision are terminated. The Final Map submittal encompasses the entire area
shown on the tentative map 13-18 which was approved by City Council on January 8, 2019.

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(1) – The proposed final map is in conformance with the
zone requirements.

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(2) – The proposed final map conforms to the preliminary
plat.

Utility Easements (D) – The affidavit has been provided on the final map for the utility
companies.

The subdivision submittal is in conformance with 3-3-7 of City Code; Final Map Stage III.

SECTION 3-3-8 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF FINAL MAP SUBMITTAL

A. Form and Content-The final plat conforms to the required size specifications and
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.

B. Identification Data

1. The subdivision map identified the subdivision, and provides its location by
section, township, range and county.

2. The subdivision map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.
3. The subdivision map provides a scale, north point, and date of preparation.

C. Survey Data

1. The boundaries of the tract are fully balanced and closed.
2. All exceptions are noted on the plat.
3. The location and description of cardinal points are tied to a section corner.
4. There are no physical encroachments upon the boundary of the tract are noted on

the plat.

D. Descriptive Data

1. The name, right of way lines, courses, lengths and widths of all streets and
easements are noted on the plat.

2. All drainage ways are noted on the plan.
3. All utility and public service easements are noted on the plat.
4. The location and dimensions of all lots, parcels and exceptions are shown on the

plat.
5. All residential lots are numbered consecutively on the plat.
6. There is a public drainage dedicated to the public shown on the plat.
7. The location of adjoining subdivisions is noted on the plat with required

information.
8. There are no deed restrictions proposed for the subdivision.

E. Dedication and Acknowledgment



FINAL PLAT 6-19
Copper Trails Subdivision Ph. 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 5 of 8

1. The owner’s certificate has the required dedication information for all easements
and right of ways.

2. The execution of dedication is acknowledged and certified by a notary public.

F. Additional Information

1. All required centerline monuments for streets are identified.
2. The centerline and width of each right of way is noted on the plat.
3. The plat indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine the

boundaries of the subdivision.
4. The length and bearing of each lot line is identified on the plat.
5. The city boundary adjoining the subdivision is identified on the plat.
6. The plat identifies the location of the section lines.

G. City to Check

1. The City shall check the final map for accuracy of dimensions, placement of
monuments, the establishment of survey records, and conformance with the
tentative map.

a) Closure calculations have been provided.
b) Construction plans have been provided and approved by city staff.
c) Construction plans for manholes, catch basins and other appurtenant

structures have been submitted.
d) An engineer’s estimate has been provided.

2. It appears the lot closures are within the required tolerances.

H. Required certifications

1. The Owner’s Certificate is shown on the final plat.
2. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all right of ways shown on the plat.
3. A Clerk Certificate is shown on the final plat, certifying the signature of the City

Council.
4. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the plat.
5. A Surveyor’s Certificate is shown on the plat and provides the required language.
6. The City Engineer’s Certificate is listed on the plat.
7. A certificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is provided

with the required language.
8. A copy of review by the state engineer is not available at this time.
9. A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the plat with

the required language.
10. The civil improvement plans identify the required water meters for the

subdivision.

The subdivision submittal is in conformance with Section 3-3-8, Content and Format of Final
Map submittal.

SECTIONS 3-3-9 through 3-3-16 (inclusive)

1. The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of
code during the preliminary plat process.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Sections 3-3-9 through 3-3-16 of city code
(inclusive).



FINAL PLAT 6-19
Copper Trails Subdivision Ph. 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 6 of 8

SECTION 3-3-17-RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPROVEMENTS

The Developer shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with Section
3-3-17 of City Code.

SECTION 3-3-18 CONSTRUCTION PLANS

The Developer has submitted construction plans in conformance with section 3-3-18 of City
Code. The plans have been reviewed by city staff. Minor revisions were required as outlined in
the City review letter dated March 7, 2019. These revisions were received by the City of Elko on
March 15, 2019. The plans have been conditionally approved by staff as identified in its staff’s
letter dated March 21, 2019. The City will submit plans to the city and state agencies for review
to receive all required permits

SECTION 3-3-19-CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION

The Developer is required to conform with all requirements stipulated in Section 3-3-19 of City
Code.

SECTION 3-3-20-REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

The Developer has submitted construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City
Code.

SECTION 3-3-21-PEFORMANCE AGREEMENTS

The Developer is required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to Section 3-3-21
of City Code.

SECTION 3-3-22-PERFORMANCE AND MAINTENANCE GUARANTEES

The Developer is required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as stipulated in
the Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-22 of City Code.

SECTION 3-8

1. The property is not located within a designated special flood hazard area.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City Code.

FINDINGS

1. The Final Map for Copper Trails Phase 2 has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City Code.

2. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

3. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master
Plan.

4. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.



FINAL PLAT 6-19
Copper Trails Subdivision Ph. 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 7 of 8

5. Conformance with the Redevelopment Plan is not required.

6. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan.

7. The subdivision submittal is in conformance with 3-3-7 of City Code; Final Map Stage
III.

8. The subdivision submittal is in conformance with Section 3-3-8, Content and Format of
Final Map submittal.

9. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-9-General Provisions for Subdivision
Design.

a. Specifically, the subdivision does not appear to be unsuitable for use by reason of
flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock
formation, extreme topography, erosion susceptibility or similar conditions which
are likely to prove harmful to the health and safety and general welfare of the
community or the future property owners.

10. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-10-Street Location and Arrangement.

11. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-11-Street Design.

12. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-12-Block Design.

13. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-13-Lot Planning.

14. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-14-Easement Planning.

15. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-15-Street Naming.

16. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-16-Street Lighting Design Standards.

17. The Developer shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with
Section 3-3-17 of City Code.

18. The Developer has submitted construction plans in conformance with section 3-3-18 of
City Code. The plans have been conditionally approved by staff as identified in its staff’s
letter dated March 21, 2019.

19. The Developer is required to conform with all requirements stipulated in Section 3-3-19
of City Code.

20. The Developer has submitted construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-20 of
City Code.

21. The Developer is required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to Section
3-3-21 of City Code.

22. The Developer is required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-22 of City
Code.

23. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-8, Floodplain Management.



FINAL PLAT 6-19
Copper Trails Subdivision Ph. 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 8 of 8

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the subdivision based on the following conditions:

1. Recommend that the City Council accept on behalf of the public the parcels of land
offered for dedication for public use in conformity with the terms of the offer of
dedication.

2. The Developer shall execute a Performance Agreement in accordance with Section 3-3-
21 of City Code. The Performance Agreement shall be secured in accordance with
Section 3-3-22 of City Code.

3. In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of City Code, the public improvements shall be
completed within a time of no later than two (2) years of the date of Final Plat approval
by the City Council unless extended as stipulated in City Code.

4. The Performance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council at the time of final
map approval by the City Council.

5. The Developer shall execute the Performance Agreement within 30 days of approval of
the final map by City Council.

6. The final map is approved for 29 single family residential lots and 1 remainder lot.

7. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter upon City Council approval of the
final map.

8. State approvals of the construction plans and final map are required.

9. Final revision and approval of the construction plans as outlined is staff’s letter dated
March 21, 2019 is required.

10. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified
engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required
inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest edition Standard
Specifications for Public Works.

11. Construction, with the exception of grading, shall not commence prior to Final plat
approval by the City Council, issuance of a will serve letter by the city and approval of
the construction plans by the State.



























o o o co 
- a, 

- 
0 

-' -' -' 
- 

0 ' 
-' -' -' ' N 

a, 

"' ' - - - 
0 

>' 
' 0 N 

M 

>' >' 
CD 

CD CD Cl 
o 

z 

� 
w 

b 
o "" 

z 
o w z 

u; < w ... CD � w a: :i: -c 0 
Cl Cl o Cl -a Cl 

SCALE 

HORIZ. N/A 
VERT N/A 

SHEET 

C1 

OF 14  

a,  

-  '  

"  '  M  

Cl  
w  

�  
a:  
w  
...  

z  ...  

0  w  

;::  -'  

CL  ""  ii:  
o  
UJ  

o  :i:  
v,  o  
UJ  

Cl  z  

::i  
CL  

0  

""  -'  
w  

U-  

0  

i;  
u  

DETAILS 

RECEIVED 

MAR 1 5 1019 

3-15-19 

MANHOLE 
SANITARY SEWER 
SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT 

. . .  SIDEWALK 
SLOPE 
SHEET 
STATION 
STORM DRAIN 

n 

CiTY OF ELKO ENGINEERING DEPT. 

A��t!h /3/ D;/E¢C/ 
OAS SHOWN 
l)f SEE NOTES 

�t,/!M c/�tio' ?,/z1/;q 

M.H 

SS.  

ssco . 

SW 

s 

SHT. 
STA 
S.D. 
T TELEPHONE 
T.B.C. TOP BACK OF CURB 
T.C. TOP OF CONCRETE 
TYP TYPICAL 
VERT. .. VERTICAL 
V.C. VERTICAL CURVE 
V.P.1 VERTICAL POINT OF INTERSECTION 
W ... WATER 

RT. .. RIGHT 
R-0-W . RIGHT OF WAY 
LT LEFT 
L.F. .. LINEAR FEET 

- EIEIUNG 

·- 

UTILITY CROSSING & LOCATION 

EROSION CONTROL PLAN 

IMPROVEMENT DETAILS 

IMPROVEMENT DETAILS 

WATER DETAILS 

STORM WATER & SANITARY SEWER DETAILS 

SITE PLAN 

GRADING PLAN 

WATER PLAN 

SANITARY SEWER PLAN 

STORM DRAIN PLAN 

PLAN AND PROFILE 

City Planner 

Date: 

APPROVED 
CITY OF ELKO DEVELOPMENT DEPT 

s: t11w 3/2- ,_;/11 
APPROVED BY ibATE 

O A S  SHOWN 
I]! SEE NOTES 

Le � /.tetl f >-jl1 

SHEET INDEX 

C10 

C11 

C12 

C13 

C14 

PLATINUM STATION 4+00 TO 1 1 + 5 0  

CB , , , , , , ,  PLAN AND PROFILE 

PLATINUM STATION 11+00 TO 14+50 AND 

MITTRY STATION o+oo TO 2+00 

C9 

C2 

C3 

C4 

C5 

C6 

C7 

C1 , , , , , , , , , . , , ,  . . .  TITLE SHEET & SITE SPECIFICATIONS 

REFERENCE 
REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE 

. . GEOTHERMAL 
GATE VALVE 
GRADE BREAK 
HORIZONTAL 
IRON PIPE SIZE 

..... INTERSECTION 
.. INVERT ELEVATION 

. . . . . .  LEFT 
LINEAR FEET 
MANHOLE 
POINT OF INTERSECTION 
POINT OF CURVATURE 
POINT OF TANGENCY 
POINT OF VERTICAL CURVE 
POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE 
PROPERTY LINE 
RADIAL 
RADIUS 

CARTER ENGINEERING, LLC 
P.O. BOX 794 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 
CONTACT: LANA L. CARTER, P.E. 
(775) 397-2531 

CIVIL ENGINEER 

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER 
SHANKS ENGINEERING 
421 RAILROAD STREET, SUITE 402 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 
CONTACT: MICHAELE. SHANKS, P.E. 
(775) 934-9356 

P.V.C. 
PVC ... 
PL 
R . 

R. 

REF. 
R C  P. 

ELKO Cl1Y PLANNING DEPARTV!ENT 
APPROVED 

GEO . 
GV. 
GB.  

HORIZ. 
IPS. 
INT. 
I.E. 
LT 

L.F. 
M.H. 
P.I. 
P.C . 
P.T. 

4.021 ACRES 

5.140 ACRES 

PROJECT CONTACTS 

HIGH DESERT ENGINEERING, LLC 
640 IDAHO STREET 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 
CONTACT: ROBERT MORLEY, P.LS. 
(775) 738-4053 

COPPER TRAILS, LLC 
207 BROOKWOOD DRIVE 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 
CONTACT: LUKE FITZGERALD 
(775) 303-8492 

OWNER-DEVELOPER 

LAND SURVEYOR 

ELEV 
E.V.C. 

OLP. 
EL. .... 

A.G. .. ASPHALTIC CONCRETE 
B.C. .. BEGIN CURVE 
B V.C. BEGIN VERTICAL CURVE 
C.F HEIGHT OF CURB FACE 
CL . . CENTERLINE 
C.M.P. . CORRUGATED METAL PIPE 
CONG CONCRETE 
C.P. CONCRETE PIPE 
D.I DROP INLET 

. . . .  DUCTILE IRON PIPE 
ELEVATION 

... ... ELEVATION 

....... END OF VERTICAL CURVE 
EX. .. EXISTING 
E.G EXISTING GRADE 
F.F. .. FINISH FLOOR 
F.G. .. FINISH GRADE 
F.H. . FIRE HYDRANT 
F.L. .. FLOW LINE 
G. GAS 

TOTAL NET ACREAGE 

TOTAL RIGHT OF WAY ACREAGE OFFERED FOR DEDICATION 
PLATINUM DR, QUARTZ DR & MITIRY AVE. 1 . 1 1 9  ACRES 

ABBREVIATIONS: 

13. CURB RETURN RADIUS SHALL BE 20' MEASURED FROM TOP BACK OF 
CURB. ALL CURB RETURNS SHALL HAVE ACCESSIBLE CURB RAMPS. 

11.  IN ADDITION TO THE EASEMENTS SHOWN A 7.5' WIDE PUBLIC UTILllY 
AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT IS PROVIDED ALONG ALL STREET FRONT 
LOT LINES AND A 5.0' WIDE PUBLIC UTILITY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT 
IS PROVIDED ALONG ALL SIDE AND REAR LOT LINES 

10. TOTAL GROSS ACREAGE PHASE 2 

12. ON SITE MITIRY AVENUE, PLATINUM DRIVE AND QUARTZ DRIVE ARE 
PROPOSED TO BE LOCAL RESIDENTIAL STREETS. 

9 THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONE X (AREA OF MINIMAL FLOOD 
HAZARD) PER FEMA FIRM MAP 32007C5606E EFFECTIVE 9-4-13 

3. LEGAL DESCRIPTION = PARCEL G OF FILE NUMBER 748288, IN THE 
OFFICE OF THE ELKO COUNlY RECORDER. 

6. NO DEED RESTRICTIONS . 

7. NO ADDRESS ASSIGNED TO THE PARCEL. 

4. TOTALAREA PARCELAREAIS19.194ACRES TOTALAREAOFPHASE2 
IS 5.140ACRES. 

5. 29 LOTS TOTAL WITH ONE REMAINDER LOT. 

2. APN = 001-610-114 

7 PARCEL TO BE SUBDIVIDED IS IN LOCATED IN SECTION 9 
OF TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 55 EAST M.D.B.& M. 

8. SUBDIVISION TO BE SERVED BY THE FOLLOWING UTILllY COMPANIES 
CllY OF ELKO· WATER, SEWER & STORM DRAIN 
SW GAS- NATURAL GAS 
FRONTIER - COMMUNICATIONS AND TELEPHONE 
NV ENERGY - ELECTRICAL 
SATVJEW BROAD BAND - COMMUNICATIONS AND TELEVISION 
ELKO SANITATION -WASTE DISPOSAL 

1. R - SINGLE FAMILY AND MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. 

PROJECT INFORMATION 
1-0- 

N 

.,,, 

,g � �. 
"' 

P. E 

I 
0 

0 

, [,?,: 

SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 55 EAST 

) V!CINITY MAP� 0
o 

PROJECT 
LOCATION--- 

9 

9 

15. THE CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION AND TESTING SHALL BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 336.00 OF THE PROJECT 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. 

11. CONCRETE CURB & GUTTERS, VALLEY GUTTERS, SIDEWALK ANO APPROACH SLABS. AGGREGATES FOR CONCRETE SHALL COMPLY IMTH SECTION 
200 AGGREGATES OF THE PROJECT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. CEMENT AND OTHER ADMIXTURES SHALL COMPLY WITH SECTION 202 
CEMENTITIOUS AND RELATED MATERIALS. ALL CONCRETE SHALL BE AIR ENTRAINED WITH A MINIMUM STRENGTH OF 4,000-PSI AT 28-DAYS 
CONCRETE MIX DESIGNS SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THE ENGINEER ANO SHALL BE CURRENT (WITH IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS). MIX DESIGNS SHALL BE 
AS SPECIFIED IN THE PROJECT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE TYPE OF WORK. CONCRETE SHALL BE PLACED, FINISHED AND CURED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 312 PCC FLATWORK, CURBS, DITCHES AND SLOPE PAVING RETURNS OF THE PROJECT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. 

14. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING AN ADEQUATE SAFETY PROGRAM DURING ALL CONSTRUCTION WORK ON THE 
PROJECT SITE. MINIMUM SAFETY STANDARDS TO BE MET ON THE JOB SHALL EXCEED THOSE MINIMUM STANDARDS ESTABLISHED BY THE FEDERAL 
GOVERNMENT (OSHA), THE STATE OF NEVADA AND THE LOCAL GOVERNING AUTHORITY. 

19. UPON COMPLETION OF WORK THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FINISH GRADE ALL DISTURBED AREAS AND CLEANUP ALL CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS. THE 
CONDITION OF THE WORK SITE SHALL BE LEFT IN A CLEAN CONDITtON FREE OF ALL CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS FOLLOWING CONSTRUCTION. 

18. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL WORK WITH THE PROJECT ENGINEER TO ENSURE ACCURATE AS-BUILTS ARE GENERATED AND SUBMITTED TO THE CITY OF 
ELKO BY THE PROJECT ENGINEER. 

16. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE PROJECT ENGINEER, THE SOILS ENGINEER, THE CITY OF ELKO ANO ALL UTILITY COMPANIES 48 HOURS PRIOR 
TO COMMENCEMENT OF THE WORK. 

12. PLANTMIX BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT, PRIME COATS, SEAL COATS, AND ASPHALTIC MATERIALS. AGGREGATES FOR BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SHALL 
BE AS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 200 AGGREGATES OF THE PROJECT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. ASPHALT CEMENTS AND BITUMINOUS MATERIALS 
SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 201 ASPHALTS AND ADDITIVES MATERIALS OF THE PROJECT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. THE 
CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE THE ENGINEER WITH A MIX DESIGN FOR APPROVAL PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF BITUMINOUS PAVING MATERIALS. 
PLANTMIX BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SHALL BE TYPE 2 AGGREGATE, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED OR APPROVED. LIQUID ASPHALT ANO EMULSIFIED 
ASPHALT PRIME COAT SHALL BE PLACED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 318 PRIME COAT AND TACK COAT OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. 
PLANTMIX BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SHALL BE DELIVERED, PLACED AND COMPACTED WITHIN SPECIFIED TOLERANCES IN ACCORDANCE vVITH THE 
REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 320 HMA PAVEMENT OF THE PROJECT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. 

9. SUBGRADE PREPARATION, EXCAVATION AND FILL. SUBGRADE SOILS SHALL BE PROPERLY PROCESSED BY MOISTURIZING AND COMPACTING THE 
SUBGRADE SOIL TO A MINIMUM OF 90% MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY IN ACCORDANCE WITH TEST METHOD ASTM D 1557. FILL SOIL SHALL ALSO BE 
PROPERLY MOISTURIZED AND COMPACTED TO A MINIMUM OF 90% MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY IN ACCORDANCE W!TH TEST METHOD ASTM D 1557. 
EARTHWORK SHALL COMPLY WITH SECTION 302 SUBGRADE PREPARATION AND SECTION 303 EXCAVATION, SECTION 304 FILL AND BACKFILL OF THE 
PROJECT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. 

13. ALL ELEVATIONS SHOWN ON THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS ARE TO THE FINISH GRADE ELEVATION OF THE MATERIAL COURSES INDICATED ON THE 
PLAN DRAWINGS. BURIED UTILITY LINE ELEVATIONS SHALL BE NOTED AS INVERT ELEVATION (PIPE FLOWLINE). THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY 
UTILITY LINE LOCATIONS AND PROTECT THESE LINES. 

17. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY ALL ELEVATIONS, DIMENSIONS, FLOW LINE, EXISTING CONDITIONS AND POINTS OF CONNECTION WITH 
ADJOINING PROPERTY (PUBLIC OR PRIVATE). ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE CALL TO THE ATTENTION OF THE PROJECT ENGINEER BEFORE 
PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK. 

10. AGGREGATE BASE MATERIAL. AGGREGATE BASE MATERIAL SHALL BE OF THE CLASSIFICATION SHOWN ON THE PLANS AND SHALL BE PLACED TO 
THE COMPACTED THICKNESS SHOWN. AGGREGATE BASE SHALL BE MOISTURIZED, SPREAD, AND COMPACTED IN MAXIMUM LIFT THICKNESS OF 
8-INCHES. MINIMUM COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS ARE 95% MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY IN ACCORDANCE WITH TEST METHOD ASTM D 1557. ALL 
AGGREGATE BASE MATERIAL, INCLUDING TYPE 2, CLASS B, AGGREGATE BASE. SHALL MEET THE MATERIAL REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 
200 AGGREGATES FOR BASE COURSES OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. PLACEMENT OF AGGREGATE BASE MATERIAL SHALL BE AS SPECIFIED 
IN SECTION 308 UNTREATED BASE COURSES OF THE PROJECT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. 

8. SANITARY SEWER PIPE AND STORM DRAIN PIPE. ALL SANITARY SEWER AND STORM DRAIN PIPE MATERIALS INSTALLED SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH CITY OF ELKO STANDARDS ANO SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 203.00 PIPE AND RELATED MATERIALS OF THE REFERENCED 
PROJECT STANDARD SPECIF/CATIONS AS ADOPTED FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION AND THE LATEST ADOPTED EDITION OF THE UNIFORM 
PLUMBING CODE. SANITARY SEWER SHALL BE SDR-35 GRAVITY SEWER PIPE. STORM DRAIN PIPE SHALL BE ADS N-12 WT IN LOCATIONS SHOWN ON 
THE PLAN. INSTALLATION OF BURIED SANITARY SEWER, DRAIN AND ROOF DRAIN MATERIALS SHALL BE DONE AS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 306 
CULVERTS, AND SANITARY SEWER AND STORM DRAIN SYSTEMS OF THE PROJECT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. ABS OR PVC PRESSURE PIPE SHALL 
BE USED WHERE PROPER SEPARATION BETWEEN POTABLE WATER LINES AND SANITARY SEWER OR ROOF DRAIN LINES CANNOT BE MAINTAINED. 
CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMMENCE UPON APPROVAL OF THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS BY THE CITY OF ELKO ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT AND THE 
CITY OF ELKO BUILDING DEPARTMENT. VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL SEPARATION OF ALL WATER AND SEWER (SANITARY OR STORM) UTILITIES 
SHALL BE MAINTAINED PER NAC SECTION 445A.6715 • SECTION 445A.6718. 

0 

- • 
- • 

J · '  
'  

.  I  

I  I  

- --- 

-  -  

@ 
•  
@  

•  

'  

----""<ea ___ 
5280 

� 
2.00% 

EXISTING STREET MONUMENT 

PROPERTY CORNER 

CALCULATED POINT NOTHING TO BE SET 

FINISH GRADE CONTOUR 

EXISTING DRAINAGE SWALE 

EXISTING GROUND CONTOUR 

PERCENT OF SLOPE 

SPOT ELEVATION 

PROPOSED DRAINAGE SWALE 

DETAIL REFERENCE NUMBER FOR 

DETAILS ON SHEETS C9 • C12 

PROPOSED STREET MONUMENT 

EXISTING POWER BOX 

GRADE BREAK LINE 

PROPOSED STREET LIGHT 

PROPOSED CONCRETE 

EXISTING STREET LIGHT 

PROPOSED PAVEMENT 

l><J 

tt 

-ws� 
"" H 

* 

® 

------'�==��- 

------'�---- 

SS 

---- ,o�w---- 

----oc---- 

c 

=======��·===== 

@ 
c 

===�>=·=== 

e 

SITE I M P R O V E M E N T  CIVIL CONSTRUCTION PLANS 

EXISTING TELEPHONE PEDESTAL 

EXISTING OVERHEAD GROUND POWER LINE 

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE & METER 

E)(IST/NG WATER VALVE 

EXISTING GAS LINE 

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT 

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT 

PROPOSED WATER VAL VE 

PROPOSED WATER LINE 

EXISTING WATER LINE 

PROPOSED SANITARY LATERAL 

EXISTING STORM DRAIN MANHOLE 

EXISTING STORM DRAIN 

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE 

PROPOSED STORM DRAIN 

PROPOSED STORM DRAIN MANHOLE 

PROPOSED TYPE 4-R CURB INLET 

EXISTING CURB INLET 

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE 

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER LINE 

LEGEND 

2. CLEARING & GRUBBING AND REMOVAL OF MATERIALS. CLEARING & GRUBBING SHALL CONSIST OF REMOVING ALL BRUSH, GRASS, TOPSOIL 
MATERIALS AND OTHER NATURAL OR OBJECTIONABLE MATERIAL FROM THE CONSTRUCTION LIMITS PRIOR SUBGRADE PREPARATION. CLEARING & 
GRUBBING SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE \NITH SECTION 300 SITE PREPARATION OF THE REFERENCED STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. 

6. REMOVAL OF EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS. REMOVAL OF BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT, CONCRETE SIDEWALK, AND CURB & GUTIER SHALL BE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 300 SITE PREPARATION ANO SECTION 301 PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF THE PROJECT STANDARD 
SPECIFICATIONS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SAWCUT ALL PAVEMENT AND CONCRETE AT THE LOCATIONS SHOWN ON THE PROJECT PLANS PRIOR TO 
REMOVAL. 

4. DUST CONTROL PROGRAM. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING A OUST CONTROL PROGRAM ON SITE AT TIMES TO 
INCLUDE WATERING OF OPEN AREAS. THE PROGRAM SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL FEDERAL, STATE, COUNTY AND CITY CODES. THE 
CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE ALL REASONABLE PRECAUTIONS TO ENSURE THAT AIR-BORN DUST DOES NOT LEAVE THE JOBSITE. ALL AREAS 
DISTURBED AND LEFT UNDEVELOPED FOR A PERIOD OF MORE THAN 30 DAYS SHALL BE STABILIZED BY THE APPLICATION OF A DUST PALLIATIVE. 
ALL AREAS DISTURBED AND LEFT UNDEVELOPED FOR A PERIOD OF MORE THAN 90 DAYS SHALL BE HYDRO-SEEDED WITH AN APPROVED SEED MIX 
AND TACKIFIER AND SHALL BE IRRIGATED UTILE FIRMLY ESTABLISHED AS APPROVED BY THE CITY OF ELKO. 

3. STORMWATER AND EROSION CONTROL. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN AN EROSION CONTROL PROGRAM ON SITE AT ALL TIMES THAT MEETS. 
OR EXCEEDS, THE CITY OF ELKO AND THE STATE OF NEVADA REQUIREMENTS. THIS SHALL INCLUDE THE PLACEMENT OF SILT FENCE AROUND THE 
PERIMETER OF THE JOBSITE AND THE PLACEMENT OF HAY BALES ANO VEHICLE MUD TRACKOUT PREVENTION MEASURES AT INGRESS ANO EGRESS 
LOCATIONS ON THE JOB SITE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN AND ON GOING PROCESS FOR REMOVAL OF SPILLAGE OF EXCAVATED MATERIAL 
OR TRACK OUT ON ALL PAVED STREETS THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DESIGNATE A LOCATION ON SITE TO CONSTRUCT A CONCRETE WASHOUT PIT 
FOR READY-MIX CONCRETE CLEANUP. AT THE COMPLETION OF WORK THE CONCRETE CLEANUP PIT SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE. A CLEAN 
JOBSITE SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE CONTRACTOR A STORM WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT, FROM THE STATE OF NEVADA AND CITY OF ELKO, IS 
REQUIRED ON ALL CONSTRUCTION WORK SITES THAT EXCEED 1.0 ACRES IN SIZE. THE WORK SITE FOR THIS PROJECT IS 6.35 ACRES. 

5. UNDERGROUND UTILITIES. ALL UTILITY TRENCHES SHALL CONFORM TO THE CITY OF ELKO AND UTILITY COMPANY SPECIFICATIONS THE 
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROTECTING ALL EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AT ALL TIMES DURING CONSTRUCTION. THE 
LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ON THE PROJECT DRAWINGS ARE APPROXIMATE AND BASED ON EXISTING RECORDS AND FIELD 
SURVEYS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND ALL DAMAGE ENCOUNTERED DURING CONSTRUCTION. THE CONTRACTOR 
SHALL CALL 811 USA NORTH FOR UTILITY FIELD LOCATIONS AT LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO COMMENCING EXCAVATION ON SITE. THE CONTRACTOR 
SHALL COORDINATE ALL WORK WITH THE FOLLOWING UTILITY COMPANIES. 

ELECTRIC POWER NV ENERGY 
NATURAL GAS...... SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION 
TELEPHONE FRONTIER 
FIBER OPTIC COMMUNICATION LINES AT&T, US SPRINT, FRONTIER TELEPHONE AND OTHER FIBER OPERATORS 
CABLE TV...... SATVIEW BROADBAND COMPANY 

7. WATER DISTRIBUTION PIPE MATERIALS. ALL WATER PIPE INSTALLED SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF ELKO STANDARDS AND SHALL MEET 
THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 203.00 PIPE AND RELATED MATERIALS OF THE REFERENCED PROJECT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, THE LATEST 
ADOPTED EDITION OF THE UNIFORM PLUMBING CODE THE LATEST ADOPTED EDITION OF THE UNIFORM FIRE CODE. ALL MATERIALS IN CONTACT 
WITH POTABLE WATER MUST BE NSFIANSI 61 CERTIFIED AS LEAD FREE AND COMPATIBLE WITH DRINKING WATER. INSTALLATION OF BURIED WATER 
PIPE MATERIALS SHALL BE DONE AS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 305 PIPE SYSTEMS AND SECTION 307 FIRE HYDRANTS OF THE PROJECT STANDARD 
SPECIFICATIONS. WATER MAIN PIPE SHALL BE AWNA DR18 C-900 WATER PIPE. WATER SERVICE PIPE SHALL BE AWNA C901 POLYETHYLENE WATER 
SERVICE PIPE , IRON PIPE SIZE (IPS), WITH A MINIMUM WORKING PRESSURE OF 200-PSI. CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMMENCE UPON APPROVAL OF 
THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS BY THE CITY OF ELKO UTILITIES DEPARTMENT, ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT, BUILDING DEPARTMENT AND NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION. VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL SEPARATION OF ALL WATER ANO SE'NER (SANITARY OR STORM) 
UTILITIES SHALL BE MAINTAINED PER NAC SECTION 445A.6715 - SECTION 445A.6718. WATER LINES SHALL BE INS1ALLED A MINIMUM OF 42" 
MEASURE FROM FINISH GRADE TO TOP OF THE PIPE THE CITY OF ELKO UTILITIES DEPARTMENT SHALL BE CONTACTED TO PERFORM ALL TAPS 
ONTO CITY OF ELKO UTILITIES. THE CITY OF ELKO SHALL BE CONTACTED FOR AUTHORIZATION TO PLACE ANY NEW WATER SYSTEMS, EXTENSION, 
REPLACEMENTS IN EXISTING SYSTEMS AND VALVED SECTIONS INTO SERVICE FOR TESTING OR FINAL ACCEPTANCE. BEFORE BEING CERTIFIED BY 
AN ENGINEER ACCEPTED BY THE CITY OF ELKO, ANY NEW WATER SYSTEMS, EXTENSIONS, REPLACEMENTS IN EXISTING SYSTEMS ANO VALVED 
SECTIONS SHALL BE DISINFECTED IN ACCORDANCE W'ITH AWWA C-651 (DISINFECTING WATER MAINS) AND BE PRESSURE TESTED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH NAC 445A 67145.7 (a) and (b) AND AWNA C-605. THE DISPOSAL OF HIGHLY CHLORINATED WATER MUST BE COORDINATED WITH NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, BUREAU OF WATER POLLUTION CONTROL. 

1. PROJECT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. ALL WORK RELATED TO THESE CIVIL IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE EXECUTED AND COMPLETED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE nSTANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCT/ON, 2016 EDIT/ONn, SPONSORED AND DISTRIBUTED BY THE 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION OF WASHOE COUNTY AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION. 
ALL CIVIL WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THESE SPECIFICATIONS UNLESS MODIFIED WITHIN THE WRITTEN CONTRACT 
WITH THE CONTRACTOR. THESE SPECIFICATIONS SHALL BE HEREAFTER REFEREED TO AS THE PROJECT"STANDARD SPECIFICATIONSn. 
CONSTRUCTION DETAILS SHALL COMPLY WITH THE CONSTRUCTION DETAILS SHOWN IN THESE PLANS CONSTRUCTION DETAILS NOT SHOWN SHALL 
BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STANDARD DETAILS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION, LATEST EDITION, AS ADOPTED ANO DISTRIBUTED BY THE 
CITY OF ELKO. 

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS= 




























































	04-02-19 Agenda .pdf (p.1-3)
	03-05-2019 Draft Minutes.pdf (p.4-24)
	Item I.A.1. TM 5-19 Orchard Cove Unit 2.pdf (p.25-67)
	T1 TITLE SHEET REV C-C.pdf
	T2 HZ CONTROL REV C-C
	T3 SITE & UTILITY PLAN REV C-C
	T4 GRADING PLAN REV C-C

	Item I.A.2. Res 1-19 Master Plan Amendment 1-19.pdf (p.68-73)
	Item I.B.1. FM 6-19 Copper Trails Phase 2.pdf (p.74-109)
	Final Plat
	CT C1.pdf (p.1)
	CT C2.pdf (p.2)
	CT C3.pdf (p.3)
	CT C4.pdf (p.4)
	CT C5.pdf (p.5)
	CT C6.pdf (p.6)
	CT C7.pdf (p.7)
	CT C8.pdf (p.8)
	CT C9.pdf (p.9)
	CT C10.pdf (p.10)
	CT C11.pdf (p.11)
	CT C12.pdf (p.12)
	CT C13.pdf (p.13)
	CT C14.pdf (p.14)

	Zoning Bulletin - Feb 10 2019.pdf (p.110-117)
	Zoning Bulletin - Feb 25 2019.pdf (p.118-125)

